
PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT INC.
Form 10-Q
August 10, 2015

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
______________________ 
FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2015 
or

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                      to                     
Commission file number: 001-13641
____________________________
PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Delaware 95-3667491
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
3980 Howard Hughes Parkway
Las Vegas, NV 89169
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
(702) 541-7777
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)
N/A
(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. YES x NO o
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T
(§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
to submit and post such files). YES x NO o
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company
o

(Do not check if a smaller reporting
company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
YES o NO x
As of the close of business on August 5, 2015, the number of outstanding shares of the registrant’s common stock was
60,707,435.

Edgar Filing: PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT INC. - Form 10-Q

1



PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
TABLE OF CONTENTS
PART I
Item 1. Financial Statements (Unaudited) 3
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Three and Six Months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 3
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Three and Six Months ended June
30, 2015 and 2014 4

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 5
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the Six Months ended June 30, 2015 6
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Six Months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 7
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 8
Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 30
Executive Summary 30
Results of Operations 32
Liquidity and Capital Resources 38
Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments 42
Critical Accounting Estimates 42
Forward-Looking Statements 43

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 46

Item 4. Controls and Procedures 47

PART II

Item 1. Legal Proceedings 48

Item 1A. Risk Factors 48

Item 6. Exhibits 50

Signature Page 52

Exhibit 11
Exhibit 31.1
Exhibit 31.2
Exhibit 32
EX-101 INSTANCE DOCUMENT
EX-101 SCHEMA DOCUMENT
EX-101 CALCULATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT
EX-101 LABELS LINKBASE DOCUMENT
EX-101 PRESENTATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT
EX-101 DEFINITION LINKBASE DOCUMENT

Edgar Filing: PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT INC. - Form 10-Q

2



Table of Contents

PART I
Item 1. Financial Statements
PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(UNAUDITED)
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

For the three months ended
June 30,

For the six months ended
June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenues:
Gaming $519,326 $493,281 $1,033,673 $973,421
Food and beverage 31,430 30,356 63,460 57,969
Lodging 13,133 13,802 24,628 24,592
Retail, entertainment and other 18,071 17,751 33,038 31,977
Total revenues 581,960 555,190 1,154,799 1,087,959
Expenses and other costs:
Gaming 281,960 266,604 546,845 514,598
Food and beverage 28,984 28,199 58,151 52,911
Lodging 6,343 6,465 12,131 11,594
Retail, entertainment and other 8,150 6,688 13,240 11,264
General and administrative 107,086 112,148 209,376 212,415
Depreciation and amortization 61,875 58,773 129,706 117,084
Pre-opening, development and other costs 6,108 6,907 7,675 10,319
Write-downs, reserves and recoveries, net 247 2,579 3,391 3,224
Total expenses and other costs 500,753 488,363 980,515 933,409
Operating income 81,207 66,827 174,284 154,550
Interest expense, net (59,995 ) (62,003 ) (121,078 ) (128,792 )
Loss on early extinguishment of debt — (8,234 ) — (8,234 )
Loss from equity method investment — — (83 ) —
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income
taxes 21,212 (3,410 ) 53,123 17,524

Income tax benefit (expense) (5,419 ) 1,093 (10,251 ) (1,097 )
Income (loss) from continuing operations 15,793 (2,317 ) 42,872 16,427
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes 4,699 26 4,916 325
Net income (loss) 20,492 (2,291 ) 47,788 16,752
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest (1,252 ) (32 ) (1,262 ) (36 )
Net income (loss) attributable to Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. $21,744 $(2,259 ) $49,050 $16,788
Net income (loss) per common share—basic
Income (loss) from continuing operations $0.28 $(0.04 ) $0.73 $0.28
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes 0.08 — 0.08 —
Net income (loss) per common share—basic $0.36 $(0.04 ) $0.81 $0.28
Net income (loss) per common share—diluted
Income (loss) from continuing operations $0.27 $(0.04 ) $0.70 $0.27
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes 0.07 — 0.08 —
Net income (loss) per common share—diluted $0.34 $(0.04 ) $0.78 $0.27
Number of shares—basic 60,976 59,593 60,808 59,429
Number of shares—diluted 63,355 59,593 62,973 61,328
See accompanying notes to the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(UNAUDITED)
(amounts in thousands)

For the three months ended
June 30,

For the six months ended
June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
Net income (loss) $20,492 $(2,291 ) $47,788 $16,752
Comprehensive income (loss) 20,492 (2,291 ) 47,788 16,752
Comprehensive loss attributable to non-controlling
interest (1,252 ) (32 ) (1,262 ) (36 )

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Pinnacle
Entertainment, Inc. $21,744 $(2,259 ) $49,050 $16,788

See accompanying notes to the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

June 30,
2015

December 31,
2014

(Unaudited)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $122,011 $164,654
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $6,124 and $4,963 33,995 28,424
Inventories 10,462 9,877
Income tax receivable, net — 20,289
Prepaid expenses and other assets 32,351 27,102
Deferred income taxes 7,509 7,509
Assets held for sale and assets of discontinued operations 10,019 21,260
Total current assets 216,347 279,115
Restricted cash 5,667 5,667
Land, buildings, vessels and equipment, net 2,925,030 3,017,009
Goodwill 915,963 919,282
Intangible assets, net 516,410 529,269
Other assets, net 77,983 83,340
Total assets $4,657,400 $4,833,682
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $32,573 $57,632
Accrued interest 49,686 49,760
Accrued compensation 71,585 73,698
Accrued taxes 44,516 39,287
Other accrued liabilities 87,306 119,106
Current portion of long-term debt 11,006 11,006
Liabilities held for sale and liabilities of discontinued operations 98 413
Total current liabilities 296,770 350,902
Long-term debt less current portion 3,782,322 3,975,648
Other long-term liabilities 40,711 40,021
Deferred income taxes 185,569 177,729
Total liabilities 4,305,372 4,544,300
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock—$1.00 par value, 250,000 shares authorized, none issued or outstanding— —
Common stock—$0.10 par value, 100,000,000 authorized, 60,657,435 and 59,979,853
shares issued and outstanding, net of treasury shares 6,703 6,635

Additional paid-in capital 1,111,298 1,096,508
Accumulated deficit (705,156 ) (754,206 )
Accumulated other comprehensive income 132 132
Treasury stock, at cost, 6,374,882 of treasury shares for both periods (71,090 ) (71,090 )
Total Pinnacle stockholders’ equity 341,887 277,979
Non-controlling interest 10,141 11,403
Total stockholders’ equity 352,028 289,382
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $4,657,400 $4,833,682
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PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(UNAUDITED) 
(amounts in thousands)

Capital Stock

Number
of
Shares

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income

Treasury
Stock

Total
Pinnacle
Stockholders'
Equity

Non-Controlling
Interest

Total
Stockholders'
Equity

Balance as of
January 1, 2015 59,980 $6,635 $1,096,508 $ (754,206 ) $ 132 $(71,090) $ 277,979 $ 11,403 $ 289,382

Net income
(loss) — — — 49,050 — — 49,050 (1,262 ) 47,788

Share-based
compensation — — 8,912 — — — 8,912 — 8,912

Common stock
issuance and
option exercises

677 68 6,512 — — — 6,580 — 6,580

Other — — (634 ) — — — (634 ) — (634 )
Balance as of
June 30, 2015 60,657 $6,703 $1,111,298 $ (705,156 ) $ 132 $(71,090) $ 341,887 $ 10,141 $ 352,028

See accompanying notes to the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)
(amounts in thousands)

For the six months ended June
30,
2015 2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $47,788 $16,752
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 129,706 117,084
Loss (gain) on sales or disposals of assets (12,003 ) 308
Loss from equity method investment 83 —
Loss on early extinguishment of debt — 8,234
Impairment of goodwill 3,319 —
Impairment of other indefinite-lived intangible asset 4,966 —
Impairment of land, buildings, vessels and equipment 2,903 4,708
Amortization of debt issuance costs and debt discounts/premiums 2,596 6,330
Share-based compensation expense 8,912 8,630
Change in income taxes 28,273 (162 )
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net (5,141 ) 2,302
Prepaid expenses and other (3,953 ) (20,237 )
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other (21,394 ) (9,635 )
Net cash provided by operating activities 186,055 134,314
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (41,749 ) (149,746 )
Net proceeds from dispositions of discontinued operations and assets held for sale 25,066 252,329
Equity method investment, inclusive of capitalized interest — (25 )
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 349 98
Purchase of intangible asset (25,000 ) (25,000 )
Escrow refund — 25,000
Loans receivable, net (825 ) 543
Restricted cash — 5,925
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (42,159 ) 109,124
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from credit facility 73,100 194,300
Repayments under credit facility (265,100 ) (473,309 )
Proceeds from common stock options exercised 6,517 4,060
Other financing activities (1,056 ) (402 )
Net cash used in financing activities (186,539 ) (275,351 )
Change in cash and cash equivalents (42,643 ) (31,913 )
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 164,654 198,575
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period $122,011 $166,662

Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $118,663 $122,132
Cash refunds related to income taxes, net (16,279 ) (2,108 )
Decrease in construction-related deposits and liabilities (6,494 ) (9,521 )

Edgar Filing: PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT INC. - Form 10-Q

9



Increase in accrued liabilities associated with recognized intangible asset — (25,000 )
Non-cash issuance of common stock 417 172

See accompanying notes to the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)
Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Organization. Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. is an owner, operator and developer of casinos
and related hospitality and entertainment facilities. References in these footnotes to “Pinnacle,” the “Company,” “we,” “our” or
“us” refer to Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. and its subsidiaries, except where stated or the context otherwise indicates.

We own and operate 15 gaming entertainment properties, located in Colorado, Indiana, Iowa, Louisiana, Mississippi,
Missouri, Nevada, and Ohio. We also hold a majority interest in the racing license owner, and we are a party to a
management contract, for Retama Park Racetrack located outside of San Antonio, Texas. In addition to these
properties, we own and operate a live and televised poker tournament series under the trade name Heartland Poker
Tour. We view each of our operating properties as an operating segment with the exception of our two properties in
Jackpot, Nevada, which we view as one operating segment. For financial reporting purposes, we aggregate our
operating segments into the following reportable segments:
Midwest segment, which includes: Location
Ameristar Council Bluffs Council Bluffs, Iowa
Ameristar East Chicago East Chicago, Indiana
Ameristar Kansas City Kansas City, Missouri
Ameristar St. Charles St. Charles, Missouri
River City St. Louis, Missouri
Belterra Florence, Indiana
Belterra Park Cincinnati, Ohio

South segment, which includes: Location
Ameristar Vicksburg Vicksburg, Mississippi
Boomtown Bossier City Bossier City, Louisiana
Boomtown New Orleans New Orleans, Louisiana
L'Auberge Baton Rouge Baton Rouge, Louisiana
L'Auberge Lake Charles Lake Charles, Louisiana

West segment, which includes: Location
Ameristar Black Hawk Black Hawk, Colorado
Cactus Petes and Horseshu Jackpot, Nevada

The operating results of Lumière Place Casino, HoteLumière, the Four Seasons Hotel St. Louis, and related excess
land parcels (collectively, the “Lumière Place Casino and Hotels”) and excess land associated with our former
Boomtown Reno property have been classified as discontinued operations in our unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Operations. In April 2014, we completed the sale of the ownership interests in the Lumière Place
Casino and Hotels. We completed the sale of our excess land in Reno in April 2015. For further information, see Note
7, “Discontinued Operations and Assets Held for Sale.” Our unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows have not been adjusted for discontinued operations.

On July 20, 2015, we entered into a definitive agreement with Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. (“GLPI”), a real
estate investment trust, whereby GLPI will acquire substantially all of our real estate assets in an all-stock transaction,
excluding our Belterra Park property and excess land at certain locations. For more information regarding the GLPI
transaction, see Note 11, “Subsequent Event.”
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Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the instructions of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q and, therefore, do not include all information and notes necessary for complete financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”). The results for
the periods indicated are unaudited, but reflect all adjustments, which are of a normal recurring nature, that
management considers necessary for a fair presentation of operating results. The unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements include the accounts of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. and its subsidiaries. Investments in the
common stock of unconsolidated affiliates in which we have the
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ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for under the equity method. All intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The results of operations for interim periods are not indicative of a full year of operations. These unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial
Statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2014.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with
GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect (i) the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, (ii) the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and
(iii) the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates used by us include, among
other things, the estimated useful lives for depreciable and amortizable assets, the estimated allowance for doubtful
accounts receivable, estimated income tax provisions, the evaluation of the future realization of deferred tax assets,
determining the adequacy of reserves for self-insured liabilities and our customer loyalty programs, estimated cash
flows in assessing the recoverability of long-lived assets, asset impairments, goodwill and intangible assets,
contingencies and litigation, and estimates of the forfeiture rate and expected life of share-based awards and stock
price volatility when computing share-based compensation expense. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Fair Value. Fair value measurements affect our accounting and impairment assessments of our long-lived assets,
investments in unconsolidated affiliates, assets acquired in an acquisition, goodwill, and other intangible assets. Fair
value measurements also affect our accounting for certain financial assets and liabilities. Fair value is defined as the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date and is measured according to a hierarchy that includes: “Level 1” inputs, such as
quoted prices in an active market for identical assets or liabilities; “Level 2” inputs, which are observable inputs for
similar assets; or “Level 3” inputs, which are unobservable inputs.

The following table presents a summary of fair value measurements by level for certain liabilities measured at fair
value on a recurring basis in the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Fair Value Measurements Using:
Total Fair
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(in millions)
As of June 30, 2015
Liabilities:
Deferred compensation $0.4 $0.4 $— $—
As of December 31, 2014
Liabilities:
Deferred compensation $0.6 $0.6 $— $—

9

Edgar Filing: PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT INC. - Form 10-Q

13



Table of Contents

The following table presents a summary of fair value measurements by level for certain financial instruments not
measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets for which it is
practicable to estimate fair value:

Fair Value Measurements Using:
Total
Carrying
Amount

Total Fair
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(in millions)
As of June 30, 2015
Assets:
Held-to-maturity securities $14.5 $15.0 $— $11.8 $3.2
Promissory notes $12.9 $19.0 $— $19.0 $—
Liabilities:
Long-term debt $3,793.3 $3,931.0 $— $3,931.0 $—
As of December 31, 2014
Assets:
Held-to-maturity securities $14.8 $21.7 $— $18.5 $3.2
Promissory notes $12.0 $16.8 $— $16.8 $—
Liabilities:
Long-term debt $3,986.6 $4,029.9 $— $4,029.9 $—

The estimated fair values for certain of our long-term held-to-maturity securities and our long-term promissory notes
were based on Level 2 inputs using observable market data for comparable instruments in establishing prices.

The estimated fair values for certain of our long-term held-to-maturity securities were based on Level 3 inputs using a
present value of future cash flow valuation technique that relies on management assumptions and qualitative
observations. Key significant unobservable inputs in this technique include discount rate risk premiums and
probability-weighted cash flow scenarios.

The estimated fair values of our long-term debt, which includes the fair value of our senior notes, senior subordinated
notes, senior secured credit facility and term loans, were based on Level 2 inputs of observable market data on
comparable debt instruments on or about June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

The fair values of our short-term financial instruments approximate the carrying amounts due to their short-term
nature.

Land, Buildings, Vessels and Equipment. Land, buildings, vessels and equipment are stated at cost. Land includes
land not currently being used in our operations, which totaled $35.0 million as of June 30, 2015. We capitalize the
costs of improvements that extend the life of the asset. We expense repair and maintenance costs as incurred. Gains or
losses on the disposition of land, buildings, vessels and equipment are included in the determination of income.

We review the carrying amounts of our land, buildings, vessels and equipment used in our operations whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable from estimated
future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. If the undiscounted cash flows
exceed the carrying amount, no impairment is indicated. If the undiscounted cash flows do not exceed the carrying
amount, then an impairment charge is recorded based on the fair value of the asset.

Development costs directly associated with the acquisition, development, and construction of a project are capitalized
as a cost of the project, during the periods in which activities necessary to get the property ready for its intended use
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are in progress. The costs incurred for development projects are carried at cost. Interest costs associated with
development projects are capitalized as part of the cost of the constructed asset. When no debt is incurred specifically
for a project, interest is capitalized on amounts expended for the project using our weighted-average cost of
borrowing. Capitalization of interest ceases when the project, or discernible portion of the project, is substantially
complete. If substantially all of the construction activities of a project are suspended, capitalization of interest will
cease until such activities are resumed. For further discussion, see Note 2, “Long-Term Debt.”
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The following table presents a summary of our land, buildings, vessels and equipment:
June 30,
2015

December 31,
2014

(in millions)
Land, buildings, vessels and equipment:
Land and land improvements $423.7 $401.9
Buildings, vessels and improvements 2,668.4 2,677.8
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 778.5 721.9
Construction in progress 26.7 75.6
Land, buildings, vessels and equipment, gross 3,897.3 3,877.2
Less: accumulated depreciation (972.3 ) (860.2 )
Land, buildings, vessels and equipment, net $2,925.0 $3,017.0

On July 20, 2015, we entered into a definitive agreement with GLPI, whereby GLPI will acquire substantially all of
our real estate assets in an all-stock transaction. For more information regarding the GLPI transaction, see Note 11,
“Subsequent Event.”

Equity Method Investments.  We apply equity method accounting for investments when we do not control the
investee, but have the ability to exercise significant influence over its operating and finance policies. Equity method
investments are recorded at cost, with the allocable portion of the investee's income or loss reported in earnings, and
adjusted for capital contributions to and distributions from the investee. Distributions in excess of equity method
earnings, if any, are recognized as a return of investment and recorded as investing cash flows in the unaudited
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. We review our equity method investments for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of our investment may have
experienced an other-than-temporary decline in value.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Goodwill consists of the excess of the acquisition cost over the fair value of the
net assets acquired in business combinations. Indefinite-lived intangible assets include gaming licenses, trademarks,
and a racing license. Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets are subject to an annual assessment for
impairment during the fourth quarter, or more frequently if there are indications of possible impairment. Amortizing
intangible assets include customer relationships and favorable leasehold interests. We review amortizing intangible
assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

During the second quarter of 2015, we determined that there was an indication of impairment on the assets of Pinnacle
Retama Partners, LLC (“PRP”) due to the lack of legislative progress and on-going negative operating results at Retama
Park Racetrack. As a result, we recognized non-cash impairments of the goodwill of PRP and the Retama Park
Racetrack license of $3.3 million and $5.0 million, respectively, which fully impaired these intangible assets. The
impairments were measured using probability-weighted discounted cash flow models, which utilized Level 3 inputs.
These impairment charges are included in “Write-downs, reserves and recoveries, net” in our unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Operations. See Note 5, “Write-downs, Reserves and Recoveries, Net,” and Note 6,
“Investments and Acquisition Activities.”

There were no impairments to goodwill or other intangible assets recognized during the three months or six months
ended June 30, 2014.

In April 2015, we made our final installment payment of $25.0 million for Belterra Park's video lottery terminal
license, which we had accrued as of December 31, 2014 in “Other accrued liabilities” in our unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Customer Loyalty Programs. We offer incentives to our customers through our mychoice customer loyalty program.
Under the mychoice customer loyalty program, customers earn points based on their level of play that may be
redeemed for various benefits, such as cash back, dining, or hotel stays, among others. The reward credit balance
under the plan will be forfeited if the customer does not earn or use any reward credits over the prior six-month
period. In addition, based on their level of play, customers can earn additional benefits without redeeming points, such
as a car lease, among other items.
We accrue a liability for the estimated cost of providing these benefits as the benefits are earned. Estimates and
assumptions are made regarding cost of providing the benefits, breakage rates, and the mix of goods and services
customers will choose. We use historical data to assist in the determination of estimated accruals. Changes in
estimates or customer redemption habits could produce significantly different results. As of June 30, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, we had accrued $27.3 million and $26.6

11

Edgar Filing: PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT INC. - Form 10-Q

17



Table of Contents

million, respectively, for the estimated cost of providing mychoice benefits. Such amounts are included in “Other
accrued liabilities” in our unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Revenue Recognition.  Gaming revenues consist of the net win from gaming activities, which is the difference
between amounts wagered and amounts paid to winning patrons. Cash discounts and other cash incentives to
customers related to gaming play are recorded as a reduction to gaming revenue. Food and beverage, lodging, retail,
entertainment, and other operating revenues are recognized as products are delivered or services are performed.
Advance deposits on lodging are recorded as accrued liabilities until services are provided to the customer.

The retail value of food and beverage, lodging and other services furnished to guests on a complimentary basis is
included in revenues and then deducted as promotional allowances in calculating total revenues. The estimated cost of
providing such promotional allowances is primarily included in gaming expenses. Complimentary revenues that have
been excluded from the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations were as follows:

For the three months ended
June 30,

For the six months ended
June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in millions)

Food and beverage $34.8 $33.7 $69.9 $66.9
Lodging 16.0 15.1 31.1 31.1
Other 4.7 4.4 9.2 8.2
Total promotional allowances $55.5 $53.2 $110.2 $106.2

The costs to provide such complimentary benefits were as follows:
For the three months ended
June 30,

For the six months ended
June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in millions)

Promotional allowance costs included in gaming expense$44.1 $39.3 $83.4 $77.4

Gaming Taxes. We are subject to taxes based on gross gaming revenues in the jurisdictions in which we operate,
subject to applicable jurisdictional adjustments. These gaming taxes are an assessment on our gaming revenues and
are recorded as a gaming expense in our unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations. These taxes
were as follows:

For the three months ended
June 30,

For the six months ended
June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in millions)

Gaming taxes $148.4 $141.5 $293.1 $274.3

12
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Pre-opening, Development and Other Costs. Pre-opening, development and other costs consist of payroll costs to hire,
employ and train the workforce prior to opening an operating facility; marketing campaigns prior to and in connection
with the opening; legal and professional fees related to the project but not otherwise attributable to depreciable assets;
lease payments; real estate taxes; acquisition costs; restructuring costs; and other costs prior to the opening of an
operating facility. Pre-opening, development and other costs are expensed as incurred. Pre-opening, development and
other costs consist of the following:

For the three months ended
June 30,

For the six months ended
June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in millions)

Ameristar acquisition (1) $0.2 $2.0 $0.6 $2.4
Belterra Park (2) — 4.7 — 7.4
Other (3) 5.9 0.2 7.1 0.5
Total pre-opening, development and other costs $6.1 $6.9 $7.7 $10.3

(1)Amounts principally comprised of legal and advisory expenses, severance charges and other costs and expensesrelated to the financing and integration of the acquisition of Ameristar Casinos, Inc. (“Ameristar”).
(2)Belterra Park opened on May 1, 2014.

(3)For the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, total includes $5.6 million and $6.3 million, respectively, of costassociated with the separation of our real estate assets from our operating assets.

Earnings Per Share. The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) is based on net income (loss)
attributable to Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. divided by the basic weighted average number of common shares and
diluted weighted average number of common shares, respectively. Diluted earnings per share reflect the addition of
potentially dilutive securities, which include in-the-money stock options and restricted stocks units. A total of 0.1
million, 0.8 million, and 1.3 million out-of-the-money stock options were excluded from the calculation of diluted
earnings per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, and for the six months ended June 30, 2014,
respectively, because including them would have been anti-dilutive.

For the three months ended June 30, 2014, we recorded a loss from continuing operations. Accordingly, the potential
dilution from the assumed exercise of stock options is anti-dilutive. As a result, basic earnings per share is equal to
diluted earnings per share for the period. For the three months ended June 30, 2014, a total of 1.4 million
out-of-the-money stock options that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future were not included in
the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Reclassifications. The unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements reflect certain reclassifications to
prior year amounts to conform to classification in the current period. These reclassifications had no effect on the
previously reported net income (loss) amounts.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an accounting standards update in
connection with reporting discontinued operations and disclosures of disposals of components of entities. The
accounting standards update changes the criteria for reporting discontinued operations. Under the amendment, a
disposal of a component of an entity or a group of components of an entity is required to be reported in discontinued
operations if the disposal represents a strategic shift that has (or will have) a major effect on an entity's operations and
financial results when any of the following occurs: (i) the component of an entity or group of components of an entity
meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale; (ii) the component of an entity or group of components of an entity
is disposed of by sale; and (iii) the component of an entity or group of components of an entity is disposed of other
than by sale. This new guidance is effective prospectively for all disposals (or classifications as held for sale) of
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components of an entity and all business activities, on acquisition, that are classified as held for sale that occur within
annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and interim periods within those years. We adopted this
guidance during the first quarter of 2015 and it did not have a material impact on our unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In May 2014, as part of its ongoing efforts to assist in the convergence of GAAP and International Financial
Reporting Standards, the FASB issued a new standard related to revenue recognition. Under the new standard,
recognition of revenue occurs when a customer obtains control of promised services or goods in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. In addition,
the standard requires disclosure of the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
customer contracts. In July 2015, the FASB approved
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the deferral of this new standard to be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017. We are currently
evaluating the impact of adopting this accounting standard on our unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued an accounting standards update with respect to performance share awards. This
accounting standards update requires that a performance target that affects vesting, and that could be achieved after
the requisite service period, be treated as a performance condition. As such, the performance target should not be
reflected in estimating the grant date fair value of the award. This update further clarifies that compensation cost
should be recognized in the period in which it becomes probable that the performance target will be achieved and
should represent the compensation cost attributable to the period or periods for which the requisite service has already
been rendered. The effective date for this update is for the annual and interim periods beginning after December 15,
2015. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on our
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued an accounting standards update which changes the presentation of debt issuance costs
in financial statements. Under the new standard, an entity presents such costs in the balance sheet as a direct deduction
from the related debt liability rather than as an asset. The amortization of the costs is reported as interest expense. The
new guidance should be applied on a retrospective basis, wherein the balance sheet of each individual period should
be adjusted to reflect the period-specific effects of applying the new guidance. The effective date for this update is for
the annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2015. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of this
standard is not expected to have a material impact on our unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

A variety of proposed or otherwise potential accounting standards are currently under review and study by
standard-setting organizations and certain regulatory agencies. Given the tentative and preliminary nature of such
proposed standards, we have not yet determined the effect, if any, that the implementation of any such proposed or
revised standards would have on our unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Note 2—Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:
June 30, 2015

Outstanding
Principal

Unamortized
(Discount)
Premium

Long-Term
Debt, Net

(in millions)
Senior Secured Credit Facility:
Revolving Credit Facility $475.1 $— $475.1
Term B-2 Loans due 2020 721.7 (18.9 ) 702.8
6.375% Senior Notes due 2021 850.0 — 850.0
7.50% Senior Notes due 2021 1,040.0 50.3 1,090.3
7.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2022 325.0 — 325.0
8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2020 350.0 — 350.0
Other 0.1 — 0.1
Total debt including current maturities 3,761.9 31.4 3,793.3
Less current maturities (11.0 ) — (11.0 )
Total long-term debt $3,750.9 $31.4 $3,782.3

December 31, 2014

Outstanding
Principal

Unamortized
(Discount)
Premium

Long-Term
Debt, Net

(in millions)
Senior Secured Credit Facility:
Revolving Credit Facility $606.6 $— $606.6
Term B-2 Loans due 2020 782.2 (21.1 ) 761.1
6.375% Senior Notes due 2021 850.0 — 850.0
7.50% Senior Notes due 2021 1,040.0 53.8 1,093.8
7.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2022 325.0 — 325.0
8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2020 350.0 — 350.0
Other 0.1 — 0.1
Total debt including current maturities 3,953.9 32.7 3,986.6
Less current maturities (11.0 ) — (11.0 )
Total long-term debt $3,942.9 $32.7 $3,975.6

Senior Secured Credit Facility:  In August 2013, we entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (“Credit
Facility”), which amended and restated our Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of August 2,
2011, as amended. The Credit Facility consists of (i) $1.6 billion of term loans comprised of $500.0 million of
Tranche B-1 term loans and $1.1 billion of Tranche B-2 term loans and (ii) a $1.0 billion revolving credit
commitment. As of June 30, 2015, we had approximately $475.1 million drawn under the $1.0 billion revolving credit
facility, approximately $721.7 million outstanding principal Tranche B-2 term loan debt, and approximately $12.0
million committed under various letters of credit under our Credit Facility. We fully repaid the outstanding principal
balances of our Tranche B-1 term loans during 2014. The outstanding principal on the Tranche B-2 term loans has
been discounted on issuance for the reduction in the proceeds received when the transaction was consummated.

6.375% Senior Notes due 2021: In August 2013, we issued $850.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 6.375%
senior notes due 2021 (“6.375% Notes”) to fund the acquisition of Ameristar. The 6.375% Notes bear interest at a rate of
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6.375% per year, payable semi-annually in arrears on February 1st and August 1st of each year. The 6.375% Notes
mature on
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August 1, 2021. Net of initial purchasers’ fees and various costs and expenses, proceeds from the offering were
approximately $835.0 million.

7.50% Senior Notes due 2021:  As part of the acquisition of Ameristar, we assumed $1.04 billion in aggregate
principal amount of 7.50% Senior Notes due 2021 (“7.50% Notes”) that were originally issued by Ameristar. The 7.50%
Notes bear interest at a rate of 7.50% per year, payable semi-annually in arrears on April 15th and October 15th of
each year. The 7.50% Notes mature on April 15, 2021. The 7.50% Notes were recorded at fair value as part of the
purchase price allocation with a premium of $72.8 million. In addition, a consent fee payment to the holders of the
7.50% Notes at acquisition was included as a discount component of the total carrying amount.

7.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2022: In March 2012, we issued $325.0 million in aggregate principal amount
of 7.75% senior subordinated notes due 2022 (“7.75% Notes”). The 7.75% Notes were issued at par with interest
payable on April 1st and October 1st of each year. The 7.75% Notes mature on April 1, 2022. Net of initial purchasers’
fees and various costs and expenses, proceeds from the offering were approximately $318.3 million.

8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2020:  In May 2010, we issued $350.0 million in aggregate principal amount of
8.75% senior subordinated notes due 2020 (“8.75% Notes”). The 8.75% Notes were issued at par with interest payable
on May 15th and November 15th of each year. The 8.75% Notes mature on May 15, 2020. Net of the initial
purchasers' fees and various costs and expenses, proceeds from the offering were approximately $341.5 million.

Financing in Connection with GLPI Transaction

In connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement (as defined in Note 11, “Subsequent
Event”), we have entered into a commitment letter, dated July 20, 2015, with certain lenders to provide the required
debt financing. For more information regarding the GLPI transaction, see Note 11, “Subsequent Event.”
Interest expense, net, was as follows:

For the three months ended
June 30,

For the six months ended
June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in millions)

Interest expense $60.1 $62.9 $121.2 $131.5
Interest income (0.1 ) (0.1 ) (0.1 ) (0.2 )
Capitalized interest — (0.8 ) — (2.5 )
Interest expense, net $60.0 $62.0 $121.1 $128.8

Interest expense is capitalized on internally constructed assets at our overall weighted average cost of borrowing.
During the six months ended June 30, 2014, we capitalized interest on our Belterra Park re-development project and
our Boomtown New Orleans hotel.

Note 3—Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate for continuing operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, was 25.5%, or an
expense of $5.4 million, and 19.3% or an expense of $10.3 million, respectively, as compared to an effective tax rate
of 32.1%, or a benefit of $1.1 million and 6.3% or an expense of $1.1 million, respectively, for the corresponding
prior year periods. Our tax rate differs from the statutory rate of 35.0% due to the effects of permanent items, deferred
tax expense on tax amortization of indefinite-lived intangible assets, state taxes, and a reserve for unrecognized tax
benefits. Our state tax provision represents taxes in the jurisdictions of Indiana and Louisiana as well as the city
jurisdictions in Missouri, where we have no valuation allowance.
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Note 4—Employee Benefit Plans
Share-based Compensation:  As of June 30, 2015, we had approximately 7.4 million share-based awards outstanding,
including common stock options, restricted stock units, and performance stock units, which are detailed below. Our
2015 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan has approximately 0.5 million share-based awards available for grant as
of June 30, 2015. We recorded share-based compensation expense as follows:
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For the three months ended
June 30,

For the six months ended
June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in millions)

Share-based compensation expense $4.8 $5.5 $8.9 $8.7

Stock options:  The following table summarizes information related to our common stock options:

Number of
Stock Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price

Options outstanding at January 1, 2015 5,568,628 $15.17
Granted 169,090 $26.51
Exercised (389,351 ) $17.36
Canceled or forfeited (24,503 ) $21.55
Options outstanding at June 30, 2015 5,323,864 $15.34
Options exercisable at June 30, 2015 3,600,813 $12.66
Expected to vest after June 30, 2015 1,318,444 $21.12

The unamortized compensation costs not yet expensed related to stock options totaled approximately $13.5 million as
of June 30, 2015. The weighted average period over which the costs are expected to be recognized is approximately
two years. The aggregate amount of cash we received from the exercise of stock options was $6.5 million and $4.1
million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, and 2014, respectively. The associated shares were newly issued
common stock. The following information is provided for our stock options:

For the six months ended
June 30,
2015 2014

Weighted-average grant date fair value $9.44 $9.08
Restricted Stock Units:  The following table summarizes information related to our restricted stock units:

Number of
Units

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Non-vested at January 1, 2015 1,212,933 $22.20
Granted 172,741 $26.32
Vested (141,470 ) $20.60
Canceled or forfeited (17,734 ) $24.14
Non-vested at June 30, 2015 1,226,470 $22.93

The unamortized compensation costs not yet expensed, related to non-vested restricted stock units, totaled
approximately $23.8 million as of June 30, 2015. The weighted average period over which the costs are expected to be
recognized is approximately two years.
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Performance Stock Units:  The following table summarizes information related to our performance stock units:

Number of
Units

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Non-vested at January 1, 2015 520,322 $23.64
Granted — $—
Canceled or forfeited — $—
Non-vested at June 30, 2015 520,322 $23.64

Note 5—Write-downs, Reserves and Recoveries, Net

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, we recognized net losses of $0.3 million and $3.4 million,
respectively. Items included in both the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 include the non-cash impairments
of PRP's goodwill and the Retama Park Racetrack license of $3.3 million and $5.0 million, respectively, net losses
related to disposals and impairments of slot and other equipment at our properties in the normal course of business,
and a gain recognized on the disposition of land in Springfield, Massachusetts of $8.4 million. In addition to these
items, the six months ended June 30, 2015 include a $2.6 million non-cash impairment of land in Central City,
Colorado, which was recognized in the first quarter of 2015.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, we recognized net losses of $2.6 million and $3.2 million,
respectively. The losses related to a $2.9 million lease abandonment charge from the consolidation of our Las Vegas
headquarters recognized during the second quarter of 2014, offset by gains during the three months ended June 30,
2014, and net losses related to disposals of slot and other equipment at our properties in the normal course of business
during the six months ended June 30, 2014.

Note 6—Investments and Acquisition Activities

Equity Method Investment:  We have invested in a land re-vitalization project in downtown St. Louis, which is
accounted for under the equity method and included in “Other assets, net” in our unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets. For the six months ended June 30, 2015, our proportional share of the investment's losses totaled $0.1
million. As of June 30, 2015, and December 31, 2014, the carrying amount of this investment was $1.7 million and
$1.8 million, respectively.

Retama Park Racetrack:  We hold 75.5% of the equity of PRP and consolidate the accounts of PRP in our unaudited
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. During the second quarter of 2015, we determined that there was an
indication of impairment on the assets of PRP due to the lack of legislative progress and on-going negative operating
results at Retama Park Racetrack. As a result, we recorded non-cash impairments of the goodwill of PRP and the
Retama Park Racetrack license of $3.3 million and $5.0 million, respectively, in the three months ended June 30,
2015.

As of June 30, 2015, PRP held $12.9 million in promissory notes issued by Retama Development Corporation (“RDC”),
a local government corporation of the City of Selma, Texas, included in “Other assets, net” in our unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The promissory notes have long-term contractual maturities and are collateralized by
Retama Park Racetrack assets. The contractual terms of these promissory notes include interest payments due at
maturity. We have not recorded accrued interest on these promissory notes because uncertainty exists as to RDC's
ability to make interest payments.
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As of June 30, 2015, we held, at amortized cost, $11.3 million in local government corporation bonds, with long-term
contractual maturities, issued by RDC, included in “Other assets, net” in our unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets. We have both the intent and ability to hold these investments until the amortized cost is recovered.

Note 7—Discontinued Operations and Assets Held for Sale

Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount or estimated fair value less cost to sell. The results
of operations of a component or group of components that has either been disposed of or is classified as held for sale
is included in discontinued operations when certain criteria are met. The fair value of the assets to be sold was
determined using a market approach using Level 2 inputs, as defined in Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies.”

Lumiére Place Casino and Hotels: In August 2013, we entered into an Equity Interest Purchase Agreement to sell the
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ownership interests in certain of our subsidiaries, which own and operate the Lumiére Place Casino and Hotels.
During 2014, we completed the sale of the ownership interests in these subsidiaries for net cash consideration of
$250.3 million.

Boomtown Reno:  In April 2015, we completed the sale of approximately 783 acres of land associated with our
former Boomtown Reno operations, with a carrying amount of $8.3 million, for cash consideration of $13.1 million,
resulting in a gain on disposition of $4.8 million, net of costs to sell.

Total discontinued operations:  Revenues and income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, are
summarized as follows:

For the three months ended
June 30,

For the six months ended
June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in millions)

Revenues $— $— $— $41.0
Income (loss) before income taxes 5.1 (0.1 ) 5.3 0.2
Income tax benefit (expense) (0.4 ) 0.1 (0.4 ) 0.1
Income from discontinued operations, net of income
taxes $4.7 $— $4.9 $0.3

Springfield, Massachusetts:  In April 2015, we completed the sale of approximately forty acres of land in Springfield,
Massachusetts, originally purchased by Ameristar for a possible future casino resort, with a carrying amount of $3.5
million, for cash consideration of $12.0 million, resulting in a gain on disposition of $8.4 million, net of costs to sell.
This gain is included in “Write-downs, reserves and recoveries, net” in our unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

Central City, Colorado:  We own approximately two acres of land in Central City, Colorado, which is classified as
held for sale. During the first quarter of 2015, we recorded a $2.6 million non-cash impairment charge, to reduce the
carrying amount of the asset to its estimated fair value less cost to sell. This impairment charge is included in
“Write-downs, reserves and recoveries, net” in our unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.
Net assets for entities and operations classified as held for sale are summarized as follows:

June 30,
2015

December 31,
2014

(in millions)
Assets:
Land, buildings, vessels and equipment, net $0.7 $11.8
Other assets, net 9.3 9.4
Total assets $10.0 $21.2
Liabilities:
Total liabilities $0.1 $0.4
Net assets $9.9 $20.8

Note 8—Commitments and Contingencies

Self-Insurance: We self-insure various levels of general liability, workers' compensation, and medical coverage at
most of our properties. Insurance reserves include accruals for estimated settlements for known claims, as well as
accruals for estimates of claims not yet made. As of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we had total
self-insurance accruals of $24.4 million, which are included in “Total current liabilities” in our unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Indiana Tax Dispute:  In 2008, the Indiana Department of Revenue (the “IDR”) commenced an examination of our
Indiana income tax filings for the years 2005, 2006, and 2007. In 2010, we received a proposed assessment in the
amount of $7.3 million, excluding interest and penalties. We filed a protest requesting abatement of all taxes, interest
and penalties and had two hearings with the IDR where we provided additional facts and support. At issue is whether
income and gains from certain asset sales, including the sale of the Hollywood Park Racetrack in 1999, and other
transactions outside of Indiana, such as the Aztar merger termination fee in 2006, which we reported on our Indiana
state tax returns for the years 2000 through 2007, resulted in business income subject to apportionment. In April 2012,
we received a supplemental letter of findings from
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the IDR that denied our protest on most counts. In the supplemental letter of findings, the IDR did not raise any new
technical arguments or advance any new theory that would alter our judgment regarding the recognition or
measurement of the unrecognized tax benefit related to this audit. We believe that our tax return position is sustainable
on the merits. In June 2012, we filed a tax appeal petition with the Indiana Tax Court to set aside the final assessment.
In August 2013, we filed a Motion for Partial Summary Judgment on the 1999 Hollywood Park sale. We asked the
court to grant summary judgment in our favor based on the technical merit of Indiana tax law. In January 2014, oral
arguments were held at the Indiana Tax Court regarding our motion for summary judgment. In June 2015, the Indiana
Tax Court issued its decision on our motion for summary judgment, in which the court denied our motion for
summary judgment and set the case for trial.

Other: We are a party to a number of other pending legal proceedings. Management does not expect that the outcome
of such proceedings, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material effect on our financial position, cash
flows or results of operations.
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Note 9—Consolidating Condensed Financial Information

Our subsidiaries (excluding subsidiaries with approximately $46.6 million in cash and other assets as of June 30,
2015, that include a majority interest in the licensee of Retama Park Racetrack and certain other subsidiaries) have
fully, unconditionally, jointly, and severally guaranteed the payment of all obligations under our senior and senior
subordinated notes and our Credit Facility. Separate financial statements and other disclosures regarding the
subsidiary guarantors are not included herein because management has determined that such information is not
material to investors. In lieu thereof, we include the following:

Pinnacle
Entertainment,
Inc.

100% Owned
Guarantor
Subsidiaries(a)

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries(b)

Consolidating
and
Eliminating
Entries

Pinnacle
Entertainment,
Inc.
Consolidated

(in millions)
Statements of Operations
For the three months ended June 30, 2015
Revenues:
Gaming $— $ 519.3 $— $— $519.3
Food and beverage — 31.5 — — 31.5
Lodging — 13.1 — — 13.1
Retail, entertainment and other — 18.1 — — 18.1

— 582.0 — — 582.0
Expenses:
Gaming — 282.0 — — 282.0
Food and beverage — 29.0 — — 29.0
Lodging — 6.3 — — 6.3
Retail, entertainment and other — 8.1 — — 8.1
General and administrative 23.5 83.5 0.1 — 107.1
Depreciation and amortization 2.0 59.9 — — 61.9
Pre-opening, development and other
costs 6.0 0.1 — — 6.1

Write-downs, reserves and recoveries,
net — (8.1 ) 8.4 — 0.3

31.5 460.8 8.5 — 500.8
Operating income (loss) (31.5 ) 121.2 (8.5 ) — 81.2
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 83.2 — — (83.2 ) —
Interest expense, net (60.0 ) — — — (60.0 )
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before inter-company
activity and income taxes

(8.3 ) 121.2 (8.5 ) (83.2 ) 21.2

Management fee and inter-company
interest 35.5 (35.5 ) — — —

Income tax expense (5.4 ) — — — (5.4 )
Income (loss) from continuing
operations 21.8 85.7 (8.5 ) (83.2 ) 15.8

Income from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes — 4.7 — — 4.7

Net income (loss) 21.8 90.4 (8.5 ) (83.2 ) 20.5
— — (1.3 ) — (1.3 )
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Net loss attributable to non-controlling
interest
Net income (loss) attributable to
Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. $21.8 $ 90.4 $ (7.2 ) $(83.2 ) $21.8
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Pinnacle
Entertainment,
Inc.

100% Owned
Guarantor
Subsidiaries(a)

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries(b)

Consolidating
and
Eliminating
Entries

Pinnacle
Entertainment,
Inc.
Consolidated

(in millions)
For the six months ended June 30, 2015
Revenues:
Gaming $— $ 1,033.7 $— $— $1,033.7
Food and beverage — 63.5 — — 63.5
Lodging — 24.6 — — 24.6
Retail, entertainment and other — 33.0 — — 33.0

— 1,154.8 — — 1,154.8
Expenses:
Gaming — 546.8 — — 546.8
Food and beverage — 58.2 — — 58.2
Lodging — 12.1 — — 12.1
Retail, entertainment and other — 13.2 — — 13.2
General and administrative 45.7 163.6 0.1 — 209.4
Depreciation and amortization 6.3 123.4 — — 129.7
Pre-opening, development and other
costs 7.4 0.2 0.1 — 7.7

Write-downs, reserves and recoveries,
net 3.0 (8.0 ) 8.4 — 3.4

62.4 909.5 8.6 — 980.5
Operating income (loss) (62.4 ) 245.3 (8.6 ) — 174.3
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 171.4 — — (171.4 ) —
Interest expense, net (121.1 ) — — — (121.1 )
Loss from equity method investment — — (0.1 ) — (0.1 )
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before inter-company
activity and income taxes

(12.1 ) 245.3 (8.7 ) (171.4 ) 53.1

Management fee and inter-company
interest 71.4 (71.4 ) — — —

Income tax expense (10.3 ) — — — (10.3 )
Income (loss) from continuing
operations 49.0 173.9 (8.7 ) (171.4 ) 42.8

Income from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes — 4.9 — — 4.9

Net income (loss) 49.0 178.8 (8.7 ) (171.4 ) 47.7
Net loss attributable to non-controlling
interest — — (1.3 ) — (1.3 )

Net income (loss) attributable to
Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. $49.0 $ 178.8 $ (7.4 ) $(171.4 ) $49.0

22

Edgar Filing: PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT INC. - Form 10-Q

34



Table of Contents

Pinnacle
Entertainment,
Inc.

100% Owned
Guarantor
Subsidiaries(a)

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries(b)

Consolidating
and
Eliminating
Entries

Pinnacle
Entertainment,
Inc.
Consolidated

(in millions)
For the three months ended June 30, 2014
Revenues:
Gaming $— $ 493.3 $— $— $493.3
Food and beverage — 30.4 — — 30.4
Lodging — 13.8 — — 13.8
Retail, entertainment and other — 17.7 — — 17.7

— 555.2 — — 555.2
Expenses:
Gaming — 266.6 — — 266.6
Food and beverage — 28.2 — — 28.2
Lodging — 6.5 — — 6.5
Retail, entertainment and other — 6.7 — — 6.7
General and administrative 28.6 83.4 0.1 — 112.1
Depreciation and amortization 1.8 56.9 — — 58.7
Pre-opening, development and other
costs 2.1 4.7 0.2 — 7.0

Write-downs, reserves and recoveries,
net 3.0 (0.4 ) — — 2.6

35.5 452.6 0.3 — 488.4
Operating income (loss) (35.5 ) 102.6 (0.3 ) — 66.8
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 65.1 — — (65.1 ) —
Interest expense, net (62.8 ) 0.8 — — (62.0 )
Loss on early extinguishment of debt (8.2 ) — — — (8.2 )
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before inter-company
activity and income taxes

(41.4 ) 103.4 (0.3 ) (65.1 ) (3.4 )

Management fee and inter-company
interest 38.0 (38.0 ) — — —

Income tax benefit 1.1 — — — 1.1
Income (loss) from continuing
operations (2.3 ) 65.4 (0.3 ) (65.1 ) (2.3 )

Income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of income taxes — — — — —

Net income (loss) $(2.3 ) $ 65.4 $ (0.3 ) $(65.1 ) $(2.3 )
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Pinnacle
Entertainment,
Inc.

100% Owned
Guarantor
Subsidiaries(a)

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries(b)

Consolidating
and
Eliminating
Entries

Pinnacle
Entertainment,
Inc.
Consolidated

(in millions)
For the six months ended June 30, 2014
Revenues:
Gaming $— $ 973.4 $— $— $973.4
Food and beverage — 58.0 — — 58.0
Lodging — 24.6 — — 24.6
Retail, entertainment and other — 32.0 — — 32.0

— 1,088.0 — — 1,088.0
Expenses:
Gaming — 514.6 — — 514.6
Food and beverage — 52.9 — — 52.9
Lodging — 11.6 — — 11.6
Retail, entertainment and other — 11.3 — — 11.3
General and administrative 51.3 161.0 0.1 — 212.4
Depreciation and amortization 3.5 113.6 — — 117.1
Pre-opening, development and other
costs 2.6 7.5 0.2 — 10.3

Write-downs, reserves and recoveries,
net 3.0 0.2 — — 3.2

60.4 872.7 0.3 — 933.4
Operating income (loss) (60.4 ) 215.3 (0.3 ) — 154.6
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 141.1 — — (141.1 ) —
Interest expense, net (131.2 ) 2.4 — — (128.8 )
Loss on early extinguishment of debt (8.2 ) — — — (8.2 )
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before inter-company
activity and income taxes

(58.7 ) 217.7 (0.3 ) (141.1 ) 17.6

Management fee and inter-company
interest 76.6 (76.6 ) — — —

Income tax expense (1.1 ) — — — (1.1 )
Income (loss) from continuing
operations 16.8 141.1 (0.3 ) (141.1 ) 16.5

Income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of income taxes — 0.4 (0.1 ) — 0.3

Net income (loss) $16.8 $ 141.5 $ (0.4 ) $(141.1 ) $16.8
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Pinnacle
Entertainment,
Inc.

100% Owned
Guarantor
Subsidiaries(a)

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries(b)

Consolidating
and
Eliminating
Entries

Pinnacle
Entertainment,
Inc.
Consolidated

(in millions)
Balance Sheets
As of June 30, 2015
Current assets, excluding discontinued
operations $45.9 $ 144.3 $ 16.2 $— $206.4

Property and equipment, net 26.4 2,893.4 5.2 — 2,925.0
Goodwill — 916.0 — — 916.0
Intangible assets, net — 516.4 — — 516.4
Other non-current assets 54.2 4.2 25.2 — 83.6
Investment in subsidiaries 4,567.6 — — (4,567.6 ) —
Assets held for sale and assets of
discontinued operations 0.7 9.3 — — 10.0

Inter-company — 534.9 — (534.9 ) —
Total assets $4,694.8 $ 5,018.5 $ 46.6 $(5,102.5 ) $4,657.4
Current liabilities, excluding
discontinued operations $91.8 $ 204.9 $ — $— $296.7

Long-term debt less current portion 3,782.2 0.1 — — 3,782.3
Other non-current liabilities (54.7 ) 281.0 — — 226.3
Liabilities held for sale and liabilities
of discontinued operations — 0.1 — — 0.1

Inter-company 533.6 — 1.3 (534.9 ) —
Total liabilities 4,352.9 486.1 1.3 (534.9 ) 4,305.4
Total Pinnacle stockholders' equity 341.9 4,532.4 35.2 (4,567.6 ) 341.9
Non-controlling interest — — 10.1 — 10.1
Total equity 341.9 4,532.4 45.3 (4,567.6 ) 352.0
Total liabilities and stockholders'
equity $4,694.8 $ 5,018.5 $ 46.6 $(5,102.5 ) $4,657.4

As of December 31, 2014
Current assets, excluding discontinued
operations $73.4 $ 184.5 $ 23.3 $(23.3 ) $257.9

Property and equipment, net 34.3 2,977.2 5.4 — 3,016.9
Goodwill — 916.0 3.3 — 919.3
Intangible assets, net — 524.3 5.0 — 529.3
Other non-current assets 60.0 4.6 24.4 — 89.0
Investment in subsidiaries 4,470.8 — — (4,470.8 ) —
Assets held for sale and assets of
discontinued operations 3.6 17.7 — — 21.3

Inter-company — 352.0 — (352.0 ) —
Total assets $4,642.1 $ 4,976.3 $ 61.4 $(4,846.1 ) $4,833.7
Current liabilities, excluding
discontinued operations $100.8 $ 273.1 $ — $(23.3 ) $350.6

Long-term debt less current portion 3,975.5 0.1 — — 3,975.6
Other non-current liabilities (63.0 ) 280.7 — — 217.7
Liabilities held for sale and liabilities
of discontinued operations — 0.4 — — 0.4
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Inter-company 350.8 — 1.2 (352.0 ) —
Total liabilities 4,364.1 554.3 1.2 (375.3 ) 4,544.3
Total Pinnacle stockholders' equity 278.0 4,422.0 48.8 (4,470.8 ) 278.0
Non-controlling interest — — 11.4 — 11.4
Total equity 278.0 4,422.0 60.2 (4,470.8 ) 289.4
Total liabilities and stockholders'
equity $4,642.1 $ 4,976.3 $ 61.4 $(4,846.1 ) $4,833.7
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Pinnacle
Entertainment,
Inc.

100% Owned
Guarantor
Subsidiaries(a)

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries(b)

Consolidating
and
Eliminating
Entries

Pinnacle
Entertainment,
Inc.
Consolidated

(in millions)
Statements of Cash Flows
For the six months ended June 30, 2015
Cash provided by operating activities $161.1 $7.9 $ 17.0 $— $186.0
Capital expenditures (3.3 ) (38.4 ) — — (41.7 )
Net proceeds from dispositions of
discontinued operations and assets
held for sale

— 25.1 — — 25.1

Purchase of intangible asset — (25.0 ) — — (25.0 )
Other 25.1 (24.8 ) (0.9 ) — (0.6 )
Cash provided by (used in) investing
activities 21.8 (63.1 ) (0.9 ) — (42.2 )

Proceeds from credit facility 73.1 — — — 73.1
Repayments under credit facility (265.1 ) — — — (265.1 )
Other 5.5 — — — 5.5
Cash used in financing activities (186.5 ) — — — (186.5 )
Change in cash and cash equivalents (3.6 ) (55.2 ) 16.1 — (42.7 )
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
of period 6.4 158.3 — — 164.7

Cash and cash equivalents, end of
period $2.8 $103.1 $ 16.1 $— $122.0

For the six months ended June 30, 2014
Cash provided by (used in) operating
activities $(4.8 ) $142.3 $ (3.2 ) $— $134.3

Capital expenditures (7.2 ) (142.6 ) — — (149.8 )
Net proceeds from disposition of
discontinued operations and assets
held for sale

— 252.3 — — 252.3

Purchase of intangible asset — (25.0 ) — — (25.0 )
Escrow refund — 25.0 — — 25.0
Restricted cash 5.9 — — — 5.9
Other 253.0 (252.6 ) 0.3 — 0.7
Cash provided by (used in) investing
activities 251.7 (142.9 ) 0.3 — 109.1

Proceeds from credit facility 194.3 — — — 194.3
Repayments under credit facility (473.3 ) — — — (473.3 )
Other 3.7 — — — 3.7
Cash used in financing activities (275.3 ) — — — (275.3 )
Change in cash and cash equivalents (28.4 ) (0.6 ) (2.9 ) — (31.9 )
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
of period 28.6 142.3 27.7 — 198.6

Cash and cash equivalents, end of
period $0.2 $141.7 $ 24.8 $— $166.7

_______________________ 
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(a)

As of June 30, 2015, the following material subsidiaries are identified as guarantors of our senior and senior
subordinated notes: Belterra Resort Indiana, LLC; Boomtown, LLC; Casino Magic, LLC; Louisiana-I Gaming;
PNK (Baton Rouge) Partnership; PNK (BOSSIER CITY), Inc.; PNK Development 7, LLC; PNK Development 8,
LLC; PNK Development 9, LLC; PNK (LAKE CHARLES), L.L.C.; PNK (Ohio), LLC; PNK (Ohio) II, LLC;
PNK (Ohio) III, LLC; PNK (River City), LLC; PNK (SAM), LLC; PNK (SAZ), LLC; Ameristar Casino Black
Hawk, Inc.; Ameristar Casino Council Bluffs, Inc.; Ameristar Casino St. Charles, Inc.; Ameristar Casino Kansas
City, Inc.; Ameristar Casino Vicksburg, Inc.; Cactus Pete’s, Inc.; Ameristar East Chicago Holdings, LLC; and
Ameristar Casino East Chicago, LLC. In addition, certain other immaterial subsidiaries are also guarantors of our
senior and senior subordinated notes.

(b)
Guarantor subsidiaries of our senior and senior subordinated notes exclude subsidiaries with approximately $46.6
million in cash and other assets as of June 30, 2015, that include a subsidiary that owns a majority interest in the
licensee of Retama Park Racetrack and certain other subsidiaries.
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Note 10—Segment Information
We use Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA (as defined below) and Adjusted EBITDA (as defined below) for each
segment to compare operating results among our segments and allocate resources. The following table highlights our
Adjusted EBITDA for each segment and reconciles Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA to Income (loss) from continuing
operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, and 2014.

For the three months ended
June 30,

For the six months ended
June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in millions)

Revenues:
Midwest segment (a) $322.9 $296.4 $636.8 $576.7
South segment (a) 200.5 203.7 404.1 403.7
West segment (a) 57.2 53.7 110.9 104.3

580.6 553.8 1,151.8 1,084.7
Corporate and other (c) 1.4 1.4 3.0 3.3
Total revenues $582.0 $555.2 $1,154.8 $1,088.0
Adjusted EBITDA (b):
Midwest segment (a) $96.0 $84.2 $196.8 $174.3
South segment (a) 59.0 62.0 126.5 126.7
West segment (a) 20.1 19.1 40.7 37.3

175.1 165.3 364.0 338.3
Corporate expenses and other (c) (20.8 ) (24.7 ) (40.0 ) (44.5 )
Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA (b) $154.3 $140.6 $324.0 $293.8
Other benefits (costs):
Depreciation and amortization (61.9 ) (58.8 ) (129.7 ) (117.1 )
Pre-opening, development and other costs (6.1 ) (6.9 ) (7.7 ) (10.3 )
Non-cash share-based compensation expense (4.8 ) (5.5 ) (8.9 ) (8.7 )
Write-downs, reserves and recoveries, net (0.3 ) (2.6 ) (3.4 ) (3.2 )
Interest expense, net (60.0 ) (62.0 ) (121.1 ) (128.8 )
Loss from equity method investment — — (0.1 ) —
Loss on early extinguishment of debt — (8.2 ) — (8.2 )
Income tax benefit (expense) (5.4 ) 1.1 (10.3 ) (1.1 )
Income (loss) from continuing operations $15.8 $(2.3 ) $42.8 $16.4

For the six months ended
June 30,
2015 2014
(in millions)

Capital expenditures:
Midwest segment (a) $22.8 $112.8
South segment (a) 12.0 26.6
West segment (a) 3.6 2.4
Corporate and other, including development projects and discontinued operations 3.3 7.9

$41.7 $149.7

(a)See Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” for listing of properties included in each segment.
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(b)

We define Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA as earnings before interest income and expense, income taxes,
depreciation, amortization, pre-opening, development and other costs, non-cash share-based compensation, asset
impairment costs, write-downs, reserves, recoveries, corporate-level litigation settlement costs, gain (loss) on sale
of certain assets, loss on early extinguishment of debt, gain (loss) on sale of equity security investments, income
(loss) from equity method investments, non-controlling interest and discontinued operations. We define Adjusted
EBITDA for each operating segment as earnings before interest income and expense, income taxes, depreciation,
amortization, pre-opening, development and other costs, non-cash share-based compensation, asset impairment
costs, write-downs, reserves, recoveries, inter-company management fees, gain (loss) on sale of certain assets, gain
(loss) on early extinguishment of debt, gain (loss) on sale of discontinued operations, and discontinued operations.
We define Adjusted EBITDA margin as Adjusted EBITDA for the segment divided by segment revenues. We use
Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA for each segment to compare operating results among our
properties and between accounting periods. Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA have
economic substance because they are used by management as measures to analyze the performance of our business
and are especially relevant in evaluating large, long-lived casino-hotel projects because they provide a perspective
on the current effects of operating decisions separated from the substantial non-operational depreciation charges
and financing costs of such projects. We eliminate the results from discontinued operations at the time they are
deemed discontinued. We also review pre-opening, development and other costs separately, as such expenses are
also included in total project costs when assessing budgets and project returns, and because such costs relate to
anticipated future revenues and income. We believe that Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA
are useful measures for investors because they are indicators of the performance of ongoing business operations.
These calculations are commonly used as a basis for investors, analysts and credit rating agencies to evaluate and
compare operating performance and value of companies within our industry. In addition, our credit agreement and
bond indentures require compliance with financial measures similar to Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA.
Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative to operating income as an indicator of
performance, or as an alternative to any other measure provided in accordance with GAAP. Our calculations of
Adjusted EBITDA and Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA may be different from the calculation methods used by
other companies and, therefore, comparability may be limited.

(c)

Corporate and other includes revenues from Retama Park Racetrack (which we manage) and the Heartland Poker
Tour. Corporate expenses represent payroll, professional fees, travel expenses and other general and administrative
expenses not directly related to our casino and hotel operations. Corporate expenses that are directly attributable to
a property are allocated to each applicable property. All other costs incurred relating to the management and
consulting services provided by corporate headquarters to the properties are allocated to those properties based on
their respective share of the monthly consolidated net revenues in the form of a management fee. The corporate
management fee is excluded in the calculation of segment Adjusted EBITDA and is completely eliminated in any
consolidated financial results.
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Note 11—Subsequent Event

On July 20, 2015, we entered into a definitive agreement with GLPI. Pursuant to the terms of the definitive agreement,
we will separate our operating assets (and certain real estate assets) and liabilities into a newly formed subsidiary
(“OpCo”) and we will distribute to our stockholders, on a pro rata basis, all of the issued and outstanding shares of
common stock of OpCo (such distribution referred to as the “Spin-Off”). As a result, Pinnacle stockholders will receive
one share of OpCo common stock for each share of Pinnacle common stock that they own. Gold Merger Sub, LLC, a
wholly owned subsidiary of GLPI (“Merger Sub”), will then merge with and into Pinnacle (the “Merger”), with Merger
Sub surviving the Merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of GLPI (the “Merger Agreement”).

At the effective time of the Merger, each share of common stock, par value $0.10 per share, of Pinnacle (the “Pinnacle
Common Stock”) issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time (other than shares of Pinnacle
Common Stock (i) owned or held in treasury by Pinnacle or (ii) owned by GLPI, its subsidiaries or Merger Sub) will
be canceled and converted automatically into the right to receive 0.85 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per
share, of GLPI.

After the closing of the Merger, OpCo will own Belterra Park and excess land not acquired by GLPI. OpCo will
operate the gaming facilities acquired by GLPI under a triple-net 10-year master lease agreement that will have five
subsequent, five-year extension periods at OpCo’s option. OpCo will initially pay GLPI $377 million in rent in the first
year after the Merger. The consummation of the Merger is subject to customary conditions, including without
limitation, receipt of regulatory approvals and the approval by stockholders of GLPI and Pinnacle. If approved by the
stockholders of Pinnacle and GLPI, we anticipate that the transaction will close in the first quarter of 2016.

In connection with the transactions contemplated by the definitive agreement, including the Merger and Spin-Off,
GLPI will refinance approximately $2.7 billion (subject to certain adjustments) of principal amount of Pinnacle debt,
with the remaining outstanding debt to be refinanced by OpCo at closing. We have entered into a commitment letter,
dated July 20, 2015, with certain lenders to provide the debt financing required by OpCo. In connection with the
commitment letter, the lenders have agreed to provide us with financing in an aggregate principal amount of $1.1
billion, comprised of a (i) $900 million senior secured term loan bridge facility and (ii) $200 million senior secured
revolving credit facility (collectively, the “Facilities”). The Facilities would mature on the one year anniversary of the
initial borrowings under the Facilities. The interest rates on the Facilities would be based on customary market LIBOR
or base rates plus an applicable margin. The obligations of OpCo and the guarantors under the Facilities would be
secured by substantially all assets of OpCo and the guarantors, subject to certain exceptions. Funding of the lenders’
commitments is subject to certain customary conditions, including, but not limited to, receipt of financial information,
delivery of customary documentation relating to OpCo and its subsidiaries and consummation of the Spin-Off. We
expect to obtain permanent financing for the transaction prior to the closing date, which would replace the Facilities
described above.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion and analysis of financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and capital resources
should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements and the notes thereto included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and the Consolidated Financial
Statements and notes thereto and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. is an owner, operator and developer of casinos and related hospitality and entertainment
facilities. References to “Pinnacle,” the “Company,” “we,” “our” or “us” refer to Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. and its
subsidiaries, except where stated or the context otherwise indicates. We own and operate 15 gaming entertainment
properties, located in Colorado, Indiana, Iowa, Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri, Nevada, and Ohio. We also hold a
majority interest in the racing license owner, and are a party to a management contract, for Retama Park Racetrack
located outside of San Antonio, Texas. In addition to these properties, we own and operate a live and televised poker
tournament series under the trade name Heartland Poker Tour. We view each of our operating properties as an
operating segment with the exception of our two properties in Jackpot, Nevada, which we view as one operating
segment. For financial reporting purposes, we aggregate our operating segments into the following reportable
segments:
Midwest segment, which includes: Location
Ameristar Council Bluffs Council Bluffs, Iowa
Ameristar East Chicago East Chicago, Indiana
Ameristar Kansas City Kansas City, Missouri
Ameristar St. Charles St. Charles, Missouri
River City St. Louis, Missouri
Belterra Florence, Indiana
Belterra Park Cincinnati, Ohio

South segment, which includes: Location
Ameristar Vicksburg Vicksburg, Mississippi
Boomtown Bossier City Bossier City, Louisiana
Boomtown New Orleans New Orleans, Louisiana
L'Auberge Baton Rouge Baton Rouge, Louisiana
L'Auberge Lake Charles Lake Charles, Louisiana

West segment, which includes: Location
Ameristar Black Hawk Black Hawk, Colorado
Cactus Petes and Horseshu Jackpot, Nevada

We own and operate gaming entertainment properties, all of which include gaming and dining facilities, and most of
which include hotel, retail and other amenities. In addition, we manage a racetrack and own and operate a poker tour.
Our operating results are highly dependent on the volume of customers at our properties, which, in turn, affects the
price we can charge for our hotel rooms and other amenities. While we do provide casino credit in several gaming
jurisdictions, most of our revenue is cash-based, with customers wagering with cash or paying for non-gaming
services with cash or credit cards. Our properties generate significant operating cash flow. Our industry is
capital-intensive, and we rely on the ability of our properties to generate operating cash flow to pay interest, repay
debt costs, and fund maintenance capital expenditures.
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Our mission is to increase our stockholders' value in the Company. We seek to increase revenues through enhancing
the guest experience by providing them with their favorite games, restaurants, hotel accommodations, entertainment
and other amenities in attractive surroundings with high-quality guest service and guest rewards programs. We seek to
improve cash flows by focusing on operational excellence and efficiency while meeting our guests' expectations of
value. Our long-term strategy includes disciplined capital expenditures to improve and maintain our existing
properties, while growing the number and quality of our facilities by pursuing gaming entertainment opportunities we
can improve, develop, or acquire. We intend to diversify our guest demographics and revenue sources by growing our
portfolio of operating properties both domestically and internationally, while remaining gaming and entertainment
centric. We intend to implement these strategies either alone or with
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third parties when we believe it benefits our stockholders to do so. In making decisions, we consider our stockholders,
guests, team members, and other constituents in the communities in which we operate.

On July 20, 2015, we entered into a definitive agreement with Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. (“GLPI”), a real
estate investment trust. Pursuant to the terms of the definitive agreement, we will separate our operating assets (and
certain real estate assets) and liabilities into a newly formed subsidiary (“OpCo”) and we will distribute to our
stockholders, on a pro rata basis, all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of OpCo (such distribution
referred to as the “Spin-Off”). As a result, Pinnacle stockholders will receive one share of OpCo common stock for each
share of Pinnacle common stock that they own. Gold Merger Sub, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of GLPI (“Merger
Sub”), will then merge with and into Pinnacle (the “Merger”), with Merger Sub surviving the Merger as a wholly owned
subsidiary of GLPI (the “Merger Agreement”).

At the effective time of the Merger, each share of common stock, par value $0.10 per share, of Pinnacle (the “Pinnacle
Common Stock”) issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time (other than shares of Pinnacle
Common Stock (i) owned or held in treasury by Pinnacle or (ii) owned by GLPI, its subsidiaries or Merger Sub) will
be canceled and converted automatically into the right to receive 0.85 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per
share, of GLPI.

After the closing of the Merger, OpCo will own Belterra Park and excess land not acquired by GLPI. OpCo will
operate the gaming facilities acquired by GLPI under a triple-net 10-year master lease agreement that will have five
subsequent, five-year extension periods at OpCo’s option. OpCo will initially pay GLPI $377 million in rent in the first
year after the Merger. The consummation of the Merger is subject to customary conditions, including without
limitation, receipt of regulatory approvals and the approval by stockholders of GLPI and Pinnacle. If approved by the
stockholders of Pinnacle and GLPI, we anticipate that the transaction will close in the first quarter of 2016.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following table highlights our results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.
As discussed in Note 10, “Segment Information,” to our unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, we
report segment operating results based on revenues and Adjusted EBITDA. Such segment reporting is on a basis
consistent with how we measure our business and allocate resources internally. See Note 10, “Segment Information,” to
our unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for more information regarding our segment information.
The following table highlights our Adjusted EBITDA for each segment and reconciles Consolidated Adjusted
EBITDA (defined below) to Income (loss) from continuing operations in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

For the three months ended
June 30,

For the six months ended
June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in millions)

Revenues:
Midwest segment (a) $322.9 $296.4 $636.8 $576.7
South segment (a) 200.5 203.7 404.1 403.7
West segment (a) 57.2 53.7 110.9 104.3

580.6 553.8 1,151.8 1,084.7
Corporate and other (c) 1.4 1.4 3.0 3.3
Total revenues $582.0 $555.2 $1,154.8 $1,088.0
Adjusted EBITDA (b):
Midwest segment (a) $96.0 $84.2 $196.8 $174.3
South segment (a) 59.0 62.0 126.5 126.7
West segment (a) 20.1 19.1 40.7 37.3

175.1 165.3 364.0 338.3
Corporate expenses and other (c) (20.8 ) (24.7 ) (40.0 ) (44.5 )
Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA (b) $154.3 $140.6 $324.0 $293.8
Other benefits (costs):
Depreciation and amortization (61.9 ) (58.8 ) (129.7 ) (117.1 )
Pre-opening, development and other costs (6.1 ) (6.9 ) (7.7 ) (10.3 )
Non-cash share-based compensation expense (4.8 ) (5.5 ) (8.9 ) (8.7 )
Write-downs, reserves and recoveries, net (0.3 ) (2.6 ) (3.4 ) (3.2 )
Interest expense, net (60.0 ) (62.0 ) (121.1 ) (128.8 )
Loss from equity method investment — — (0.1 ) —
Loss on early extinguishment of debt — (8.2 ) — (8.2 )
Income tax benefit (expense) (5.4 ) 1.1 (10.3 ) (1.1 )
Income (loss) from continuing operations $15.8 $(2.3 ) $42.8 $16.4

(a)See “Executive Summary” section for listing of properties included in each segment.

(b)We define Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA as earnings before interest income and expense, income taxes,
depreciation, amortization, pre-opening, development and other costs, non-cash share-based compensation, asset
impairment costs, write-downs, reserves, recoveries, corporate-level litigation settlement costs, gain (loss) on sale
of certain assets, loss on early extinguishment of debt, gain (loss) on sale of equity security investments, income
(loss) from equity method investments, non-controlling interest and discontinued operations. We define Adjusted
EBITDA for each operating segment as earnings before interest income and expense, income taxes, depreciation,
amortization, pre-opening, development and other costs, non-cash share-based compensation, asset impairment
costs, write-downs, reserves, recoveries, inter-company management fees, gain (loss) on sale of certain assets, gain
(loss) on early extinguishment of debt, gain (loss) on sale of discontinued operations, and discontinued operations.
We define Adjusted EBITDA margin as Adjusted EBITDA for the segment divided by segment revenues. We use
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Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA for each segment to compare operating results among our
properties and between accounting periods.
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Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA have economic substance because they are used by
management as measures to analyze the performance of our business and are especially relevant in evaluating large,
long-lived casino-hotel projects because they provide a perspective on the current effects of operating decisions
separated from the substantial non-operational depreciation charges and financing costs of such projects. We eliminate
the results from discontinued operations at the time they are deemed discontinued. We also review pre-opening,
development and other costs separately, as such expenses are also included in total project costs when assessing
budgets and project returns, and because such costs relate to anticipated future revenues and income. We believe that
Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are useful measures for investors because they are indicators
of the performance of ongoing business operations. These calculations are commonly used as a basis for investors,
analysts and credit rating agencies to evaluate and compare operating performance and value of companies within our
industry. In addition, our credit agreement and bond indentures require compliance with financial measures similar to
Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA. Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative to
operating income as an indicator of performance, or as an alternative to any other measure provided in accordance
with GAAP. Our calculations of Adjusted EBITDA and Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA may be different from the
calculation methods used by other companies and, therefore, comparability may be limited.

(c)

Corporate and other includes revenues from Retama Park Racetrack (which we manage) and the Heartland Poker
Tour. Corporate expenses represent unallocated payroll, professional fees, travel expenses and other general and
administrative expenses not directly related to our casino and hotel operations. Other includes expenses relating to
the management of Retama Park Racetrack and the operation of Heartland Poker Tour.

Consolidated Overview

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, income from continuing operations was $15.8 million and $42.8
million, respectively. Revenues increased by $26.8 million, or 4.8%, year over year, to $582.0 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2015 and increased by $66.8 million, or 6.1%, year over year, to $1.2 billion for the six
months ended June 30, 2015. Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA was $154.3 million, an increase of $13.7 million, or
9.7%, year over year, for the three months ended June 30, 2015 and was $324.0 million for the six months ended June
30, 2015, an increase of $30.2 million, or 10.3%. For the three months ended June 30, 2015, Consolidated Adjusted
EBITDA was negatively impacted by $0.6 million of cost related to the L'Auberge Lake Charles retention program
and from repair costs and lost business volume related to flooding of the Red River in Bossier City. For the six months
ended June 30, 2015, Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA benefited from a $3.6 million refund received on disputed
vendor payments in the first quarter of 2015, partially offset by $1.4 million in costs related to the L'Auberge Lake
Charles retention program and by repair costs and lost business volume related to flooding of the Red River in Bossier
City.

Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 was negatively impacted by $4.5
million related to the company-wide rollout of the mychoice player loyalty program to the Ameristar-branded
properties, $2.8 million from referendum opposition costs, and $1.5 million in severance expense. Operating results in
the prior year were also negatively impacted by lost business volumes at Ameristar Vicksburg due to water damage
and lost business volume from systems integration related property shutdowns in Missouri.

The Company’s revenue consists mostly of gaming revenue, which is primarily from slot machines and to a lesser
extent, table games. Slot revenue represented approximately 83% and 79% of gaming revenue in 2014 and 2013,
respectively. In analyzing the performance of our properties, the key indicators related to gaming revenue are slot
handle and table games drop (which are volume indicators) and win or hold percentage.

Slot handle or video lottery terminal (“VLT”) handle represents the total amount wagered in a slot machine or VLT, and
table games drop represents the total amount of cash and net markers issued that are deposited in gaming table drop
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boxes. Win represents the amount of wagers retained by us and recorded as gaming revenue, and hold represents win
as a percentage of slot handle, VLT handle or table games drop. Given the stability in our slot and VLT hold
percentages, we have not experienced any significant impact on our results of operations as a result of changes in hold
percentages.

For table games, customers usually purchase cash chips at the gaming tables. The cash and markers (extensions of
credit granted to certain credit-worthy customers) are deposited in the drop box of each gaming table. Table game win
is the amount of drop that is retained and recorded as gaming revenue, with liabilities recognized for funds deposited
by customers.
We offer incentives to our customers through our mychoice customer loyalty program. Under the mychoice customer
loyalty program, customers earn points based on their level of play that may be redeemed for various benefits, such as
cash back, dining, or hotel stays, among others. The reward credit balance under the program will be forfeited if the
customer does
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not earn or use any reward credits over the prior six-month period. In addition, based on their level of play, customers
can earn additional benefits without redeeming points, such as a car lease, among other items.
We accrue a liability for the estimated cost of providing these benefits as the benefits are earned. Estimates and
assumptions are made regarding the cost of providing such benefits, breakage rates, and the mixture of goods and
services customers will choose. We use historical data to assist in the determination of estimated accruals. Changes in
estimates or customer redemption habits could produce significantly different results. As of June 30, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, we had accrued $27.3 million and $26.6 million, respectively, for the estimated cost of providing
mychoice benefits.

Segment comparison of the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

Midwest Segment
For the three months ended
June 30,

Percentage
change

For the six months ended
June 30,

Percentage
change

2015 2014 2015 vs. 2014 2015 2014 2015 vs. 2014
(in millions) (in millions)

Gaming revenues $291.7 $267.0 9.3 % $577.3 $523.6 10.3 %
Total revenues 322.9 296.4 8.9 % 636.8 576.7 10.4 %
Operating income 62.4 48.4 28.9 % 128.2 104.7 22.4 %
Adjusted EBITDA 96.0 84.2 14.0 % 196.8 174.3 12.9 %

In the Midwest segment, revenues increased by $26.5 million, or 8.9% year over year, to $322.9 million during the
second quarter of 2015. Adjusted EBITDA increased by $11.8 million, or 14.0% year over year, to $96.0 million.
Adjusted EBITDA margin was 29.7%, an increase of 130 basis points year over year.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, the Midwest segment's year over year improvements were
broad-based, with every property in the segment contributing to year over year increases in both net revenue and
Adjusted EBITDA. The increase in Midwest segment Adjusted EBITDA was primarily driven by particularly strong
operating results at our Ameristar St. Charles, River City, and Ameristar Kansas City properties. In addition to these
same store increases, our Belterra Park property, which opened in May 2014, contributed to year over year net
revenue and Adjusted EBITDA growth in the segment.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, the Midwest segment’s results were negatively affected by a $3.7
million reduction in Adjusted EBITDA due to the rollout of the mychoice customer loyalty program at the
Ameristar-branded properties and severance. Operating results were also negatively impacted by systems integration
related property shutdowns at our Missouri properties.

South Segment  
For the three months ended
June 30,

Percentage
change

For the six months ended
June 30,

Percentage
change

2015 2014 2015 vs. 2014 2015 2014 2015 vs. 2014
(in millions) (in millions)

Gaming revenues $179.6 $181.4 (1.0 )% $363.2 $362.3 0.2  %
Total revenues 200.5 203.7 (1.6 )% 404.1 403.7 0.1  %
Operating income 37.9 42.3 (10.4 )% 82.3 87.0 (5.4 )%
Adjusted EBITDA 59.0 62.0 (4.8 )% 126.5 126.7 (0.2 )%

In the South segment, revenues decreased by $3.2 million, or 1.6% year over year, to $200.5 million during the second
quarter of 2015. Adjusted EBITDA decreased by $3.0 million, or 4.8% year over year, to $59.0 million. Adjusted
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EBITDA margin was 29.4%, a decrease of 100 basis points year over year.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, South segment results were driven by the strong operating
performance at our L'Auberge Baton Rouge, Boomtown New Orleans, and Ameristar Vicksburg properties, which
produced increases in net revenue and Adjusted EBITDA for the segment. L'Auberge Baton Rouge has continued to
expand its presence
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in the Baton Rouge and broader Gulf Coast regional gaming markets and has increased its operational efficiency. The
operating results of L'Auberge Lake Charles experienced slight declines as a result of the increased competition in the
local market. Additionally, the South segment Adjusted EBITDA results were negatively impacted by $0.6 million of
cost associated with the L'Auberge Lake Charles team member retention program and by repair costs and lost business
volume from flooding of the Red River in Bossier City.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, the South segment’s results were negatively affected by a $0.5
million reduction in Adjusted EBITDA due to the rollout of the mychoice customer loyalty program at Ameristar
Vicksburg and severance expense. Operating results were also negatively impacted by repair expenses and lost
business volumes at Ameristar Vicksburg due to water damage that required the removal of approximately half of the
property’s hotel rooms from service for 20 days in June 2014.

West Segment   
For the three months ended
June 30,

Percentage
change

For the six months ended
June 30,

Percentage
change

2015 2014 2015 vs. 2014 2015 2014 2015 vs. 2014
(in millions) (in millions)

Gaming revenues $48.1 $44.8 7.4 % $93.1 $87.5 6.4 %
Total revenues 57.2 53.7 6.5 % 110.9 104.3 6.3 %
Operating income 13.1 12.3 6.5 % 26.9 23.6 14.0 %
Adjusted EBITDA 20.1 19.1 5.2 % 40.7 37.3 9.1 %

In the West segment, revenues increased by $3.5 million, or 6.5% year over year, to $57.2 million during the second
quarter of 2015. Adjusted EBITDA increased by $1.0 million, or 5.2% year over year, to $20.1 million. Adjusted
EBITDA margin was 35.1%, a decrease of 50 basis points year over year.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, the West segment's operating performance was positively impacted
by revenue growth and operational efficiency at Ameristar Black Hawk, and a focus on expense discipline at Cactus
Petes and Horseshu.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, the West segment’s Adjusted EBITDA was negatively impacted by
$1.1 million due to a charge related to the rollout of the mychoice player loyalty program and severance expense.
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Other factors affecting income (loss) from continuing operations
The following is a description of the other costs and benefits affecting income (loss) from continuing operations for
the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively:

For the three months
ended June 30,

Percentage
change

For the six months ended
June 30,

Percentage
change

2015 2014 2015 vs. 2014 2015 2014 2015 vs. 2014
(in millions) (in millions)

Other benefits (costs):
Corporate expenses and other $(20.8 ) $(24.7 ) (15.8 )% $(40.0 ) $(44.5 ) (10.1 )%
Depreciation and amortization (61.9 ) (58.8 ) 5.3  % (129.7 ) (117.1 ) 10.8  %
Pre-opening, development and
other costs (6.1 ) (6.9 ) (11.6 )% (7.7 ) (10.3 ) (25.2 )%

Share-based compensation
expense (4.8 ) (5.5 ) (12.7 )% (8.9 ) (8.7 ) 2.3  %

Write-downs, reserves and
recoveries, net (0.3 ) (2.6 ) (88.5 )% (3.4 ) (3.2 ) 6.3  %

Loss from equity method
investment — — NM (0.1 ) — NM

Loss on early extinguishment of
debt — (8.2 ) NM — (8.2 ) NM

Interest expense, net (60.0 ) (62.0 ) (3.2 )% (121.1 ) (128.8 ) (6.0 )%
Income tax benefit (expense) (5.4 ) 1.1 NM (10.3 ) (1.1 ) NM
NM — Not Meaningful

Corporate expenses and other is principally comprised of corporate overhead expenses, the Heartland Poker Tour, and
the Retama Park management operations. For the three months ended June 30, 2015, corporate expense decreased by
$3.9 million year over year to $20.8 million. The decline is primarily attributable to $3.6 million in non-recurring
expenses related to referendum opposition costs and severance incurred during the three months ended June 30, 2014.

For the six months ended June 30, 2015, corporate expenses decreased $4.5 million year over year to $40.0 million.
The decline is primarily attributable to a refund received on disputed vendor payments in the first quarter of 2015 and
$3.6 million of non-recurring expenses related to referendum opposition costs and severance incurred during the six
months ended June 30, 2014.

Depreciation and amortization increased for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, as compared to the prior
year periods, due to the opening of Belterra Park in May 2014, the opening of the Boomtown New Orleans hotel in
December 2014, and other capital projects placed into service since the second quarter of 2014.

Pre-opening, development and other costs for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, consist of the
following:

For the three months ended
June 30,

For the six months ended
June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in millions)

Ameristar acquisition (1) $0.2 $2.0 $0.6 $2.4
Belterra Park (2) — 4.7 — 7.4
Other (3) 5.9 0.2 7.1 0.5
Total pre-opening, development and other costs $6.1 $6.9 $7.7 $10.3
(1)
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Amounts principally comprised of legal and advisory expenses, severance charges and other costs and expenses
related to the financing and integration of the acquisition of Ameristar Casinos, Inc. (“Ameristar”).

(2)Belterra Park opened on May 1, 2014.

(3)For the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, total includes $5.6 million and $6.3 million, respectively, of costassociated with the separation of our real estate assets from our operating assets.
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Share-based compensation expense for the three months ended June 30, 2015 decreased compared to the prior year
period due to the determination in the third quarter of 2014 that certain performance share awards were no longer
expected to vest and a reduction in the level of stock awards granted to employees. For the six months ended June 30,
2015, share-based compensation expense increased as compared to the prior year period primarily due to an increase
in outstanding stock awards granted to employees.

Write-downs, reserves and recoveries, net, consist of net losses of $0.3 million and $3.4 million, respectively. Items
included in both the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, include the non-cash impairment of PRP's goodwill
and the Retama Park Racetrack license of $3.3 million and $5.0 million, respectively, net losses related to disposals
and impairments of slot and other equipment at our properties in the normal course of business, and a gain recognized
on the disposition of land in Springfield, Massachusetts, of $8.4 million. In addition to these items, the six months
ended June 30, 2015 includes a $2.6 million non-cash impairment of land in Central City, Colorado, which was
recognized in the first quarter of 2015.

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, we recognized net losses of $2.6 million and $3.2 million,
respectively. The losses related to a $2.9 million lease abandonment charge from the consolidation of our Las Vegas
headquarters recognized during the second quarter of 2014, offset by gains during the three months ended June 30,
2014, and net losses related to disposals of slot and other equipment at our properties in the normal course of business
during the six months ended June 30, 2014.

Loss on equity method investment represents losses recognized during the three and six months ended June 30, 2015,
for our allocable share of an investment in a land re-vitalization project in downtown St. Louis.

Interest expense, net, consists of the following:
For the three months ended
June 30,

For the six months ended
June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in millions)

Interest expense $60.1 $62.9 $121.2 $131.5
Interest income (0.1 ) (0.1 ) (0.1 ) (0.2 )
Capitalized interest — (0.8 ) — (2.5 )
Interest expense, net $60.0 $62.0 $121.1 $128.8

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, as compared to the prior year periods, interest expense decreased
due to the reduction in total debt principal outstanding achieved with operating cash flow and proceeds from asset
sales.
Income taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, consist of our effective tax rate for continuing
operations of 25.5%, or an expense of $5.4 million, and 19.3%, or an expense of $10.3 million, respectively, as
compared to an effective tax rate of 32.1%, or a benefit of $1.1 million, and 6.3% or an expense of $1.1 million,
respectively, for the corresponding prior year periods. Our tax rate differs from the statutory rate of 35.0% due to the
effects of permanent items, deferred tax expense on tax amortization of indefinite-lived intangible assets, state taxes
and a reserve for unrecognized tax benefits. Our state tax provision represents taxes in the jurisdictions of Indiana and
Louisiana, as well as the city jurisdictions in Missouri, where we have no valuation allowance.
Discontinued operations

Lumiére Place Casino and Hotels:  In August 2013, we entered into an Equity Interest Purchase Agreement to sell the
ownership interests in certain of our subsidiaries, which own and operate the Lumiére Place Casino and Hotels.
During 2014, we completed the sale of the ownership interests in these subsidiaries for net cash consideration of
$250.3 million.
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Boomtown Reno:  In April 2015, we completed the sale of approximately 783 acres of land associated with our
former Boomtown Reno operations, with a carrying amount of $8.3 million, for cash consideration of $13.1 million,
resulting in a gain on disposition of $4.8 million, net of costs to sell.
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Total discontinued operations: Revenues and income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, are
summarized as follows:

For the three months ended
June 30,

For the six months ended
June 30,

2015 2014 2015 2014
(in millions)

Revenues $— $— $— $41.0
Income (loss) before income taxes 5.1 (0.1 ) 5.3 0.2
Income tax benefit (expense) (0.4 ) 0.1 (0.4 ) 0.1
Income from discontinued operations, net of income
taxes $4.7 $— $4.9 $0.3

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
As of June 30, 2015, we held $122.0 million of cash and cash equivalents and $5.7 million of restricted cash. As of
June 30, 2015, we had approximately $475.1 million drawn on our $1.0 billion revolving credit facility and had
approximately $12.0 million committed under various letters of credit. During the six months ended June 30, 2015, we
retired $192.0 million in aggregate principal amount of credit facility debt. The debt retired in the six months ended
June 30, 2015 was accomplished principally with cash flow from operations and net proceeds received from the
dispositions of land in Springfield, Massachusetts, and Reno, Nevada, during the second quarter of 2015.

We generally produce significant positive cash flows from operations, though this is not always reflected in our
reported net income due to large non-cash charges such as depreciation and amortization. However, our ongoing
liquidity will depend on a number of factors, including available cash resources, cash flow from operations, funding of
construction of development projects, and our compliance with covenants contained in our amended and restated
credit facility and the indentures governing our senior subordinated notes and senior notes.

For the six months ended
June 30,

Percentage
Increase/(Decrease)

2015 2014 2015 vs. 2014
(in millions)

Net cash provided by operating activities $186.0 $134.3 38.5  %
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities $(42.2 ) $109.1 (138.7 )%
Net cash used in financing activities $(186.5 ) $(275.4 ) (32.3 )%
Operating Cash Flow
Our cash provided by operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2015, as compared to the prior year
period, increased due primarily to an improvement in operating results and the receipt of approximately $16.3 million
of net cash refunds related to income taxes.
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Investing Cash Flow

The following is a summary of our capital expenditures by segment:
For the six months ended June
30,
2015 2014
(in millions)

Midwest segment $22.8 $112.8
South segment 12.0 26.6
West segment 3.6 2.4
Other 3.3 7.9
Total capital expenditures $41.7 $149.7

During the three months ended June 30, 2015, we made our final installment payment of $25.0 million for Belterra
Park's VLT license. Additionally, during the second quarter of 2015, we received approximately $25.1 million in
combined net proceeds from the dispositions of land in Springfield, Massachusetts, and Reno, Nevada, in separate
transactions.

Our intention is to use existing cash resources, expected cash flows from operations and funds available under our
Credit Facility to fund operations, maintain existing properties, make necessary debt service payments, and fund any
potential development projects. In the event that our future cash flows from operations do not match the levels we
currently anticipate, whether due to downturns in the economy or otherwise, we may need to raise funds through the
capital markets, if possible.

Our ability to borrow under our Credit Facility is contingent upon, among other things, meeting customary financial
and other covenants. If we are unable to borrow under our Credit Facility, or if our operating results are adversely
affected because of a reduction in consumer spending, or for any other reason, our ability to maintain our existing
properties or complete our ongoing projects may be affected unless we sell assets, enter into leasing arrangements, or
take other measures to find additional financial resources. There is no certainty that we will be able to do so on terms
that are favorable to the Company or at all.

As discussed below, we have entered into a commitment letter with certain lenders to provide financing in connection
with the Merger with GLPI.

We may face significant challenges if conditions in the economy and financial markets worsen, the effect of which
could adversely affect consumer confidence and the willingness of consumers to spend money on leisure activities.
Because of the current economic environment, certain of our customers may curtail the frequency of their visits to our
casinos and may reduce the amounts they wager and spend when compared to similar statistics in better economic
times. All of these effects could have a material adverse effect on our liquidity.
Financing Cash Flow

Credit Facility

In August 2013, we entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (“Credit Facility”), which consists of
(i) $1.6 billion of term loans comprised of $500.0 million of Tranche B-1 term loans and $1.1 billion of Tranche B-2
term loans and (ii) a $1.0 billion revolving credit commitment. As of June 30, 2015, we had approximately $475.1
million drawn under the $1.0 billion revolving credit facility, approximately $721.7 million in outstanding principal
Tranche B-2 term loan debt, and approximately $12.0 million committed under various letters of credit under our
Credit Facility. We fully repaid the outstanding principal balances of our Tranche B-1 term loans during 2014.
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In the second quarter 2015, we repaid $2.7 million of term loans and $86.5 million of outstanding borrowings on the
revolving credit facility, for a reduction in principal amount of debt of $89.2 million.

Subject to acceleration and mandatory pre-payment provisions in the Credit Facility (as described below), the loans
are due to be paid as follows: (i) the revolving credit loans are due and payable in full on August 13, 2018; and (ii) the
Tranche B-2 term loans are subject to 0.25% quarterly principal amortization requirements and the remaining
principal outstanding is due
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and payable in full on August 13, 2020; provided, that such date shall be accelerated to November 15, 2019, if any
portion of our 8.75% senior subordinated notes due 2020 are outstanding on November 15, 2019.

The Credit Facility permits us, in the future, to increase the commitments under the revolving credit facility and to
obtain term loan commitments, in each case from existing or new lenders that are willing to commit to such an
increase, so long as we are in pro-forma compliance with the Credit Facility's financial and other covenants, including
a consolidated senior secured debt ratio and a consolidated total leverage ratio.

The proceeds of the Credit Facility may be used to: (i) repay, in full, all existing indebtedness of Pinnacle, Ameristar,
and their respective subsidiaries as of the date of the Credit Facility, other than specified existing indebtedness and
other indebtedness permitted to remain outstanding under the terms of the Credit Facility; (ii) pay the fees, costs, and
expenses related to the transactions contemplated by the Credit Facility, the loan documents related thereto and the
acquisition documents related to the merger with Ameristar; and (iii) for the working capital and general corporate
purposes of Pinnacle and its subsidiaries.

The Credit Facility requires quarterly repayments with respect to the term loans in amounts equal to 0.25% of the
outstanding principal of such loans. We are obligated to make mandatory prepayments of indebtedness under the
Credit Facility from the net proceeds of certain debt offerings, certain asset sales and dispositions, and certain casualty
events, subject in certain cases to its right to reinvest proceeds. In addition, we will be required to prepay borrowings
under the Credit Facility with a percentage of our “excess cash flow” (as defined in the Credit Facility). We have the
option to prepay all or a portion of the indebtedness under the Credit Facility at any time without penalty.

The term loans bear interest, at our option, at either LIBOR plus 2.75% or at a base rate plus 1.75% and in no event
will LIBOR be less than 1.00%. The revolving credit facility bears interest, at our option, at either LIBOR plus a
margin ranging from 1.75% to 2.75% or at a base rate plus a margin ranging from 0.75% to 1.75%, in either case
based on our consolidated total leverage ratio, which, in general, is the ratio of consolidated total debt (less excess
cash, as defined in the Credit Facility) to annualized adjusted EBITDA.

The Credit Facility has, among other things, financial covenants and other affirmative and negative covenants. As of
June 30, 2015, the Credit Facility requires compliance with the following ratios so long as there are outstanding
borrowings under our revolving credit facility: (1) maximum consolidated total leverage ratio of 7.00 to 1.00 (as
defined in the Credit Facility); (2) minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio (as defined in the Credit Facility) of
2.00 to 1.00; and (3) maximum consolidated senior secured debt ratio (as defined in the Credit Facility) of 2.75 to
1.00. In addition, the Credit Facility has covenants that limit the amount of senior unsecured debt we may incur to
$3.5 billion, unless our maximum consolidated total leverage ratio is less than 6.00 to 1.00. The maximum
consolidated total leverage ratio and maximum senior secured debt ratio are subject to change at each fiscal quarter
until December 31, 2017. As of June 30, 2015, we were in compliance with each of these ratios, and compliance with
these ratios does not have a material impact on our financial flexibility, including our ability to incur new
indebtedness.

The obligations under the Credit Facility are secured by most of our assets and the assets of our domestic restricted
subsidiaries, including a pledge of the equity interests in our domestic subsidiaries (except where such pledge is
prohibited by gaming regulations) and, if and when formed or acquired, by a pledge of up to 66% of the
then-outstanding equity interests of our foreign restricted subsidiaries. Subsidiaries with approximately $46.6 million
in total assets as of June 30, 2015, (which includes a subsidiary that owns a majority interest in the license of Retama
Park Racetrack, among others) and each of our foreign subsidiaries are currently unrestricted subsidiaries for purposes
of the Credit Facility.

Edgar Filing: PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT INC. - Form 10-Q

62



The Credit Facility provides for customary events of default, in certain cases with corresponding grace periods,
including payment defaults, cross defaults with certain other indebtedness to third parties, breaches of covenants and
bankruptcy events. In the case of a continuing event of default, the lenders may, among other remedies, accelerate the
payment of all obligations due from us to the lenders, charge the default rate of interest on all then outstanding or
thereafter incurred obligations, and terminate the lenders’ commitments to make any further loans or issue any further
letters of credit. In the event of certain defaults, the commitments of the lenders will be automatically terminated and
all outstanding obligations of the Company will automatically become due. In addition, the lenders may take
possession of, and enforce our rights with respect to, our collateral, including selling the collateral.

Senior and Senior Subordinated Indebtedness

As of June 30, 2015, we had outstanding $850.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.375% senior notes due 2021
(“6.375% Notes”), $1.04 billion aggregate principal amount of 7.50% senior notes due 2021 (“7.50% Notes”), $325.0
million 
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aggregate principal amount of 7.75% senior subordinated notes due 2022 (“7.75% Notes”), and $350.0 million
aggregate principal amount of 8.75% senior subordinated notes due 2020 (“8.75% Notes”).

6.375% Senior Notes due 2021 and 7.50% Senior Notes due 2021

On August 5, 2013, we closed an offering of $850.0 million of 6.375% Notes at a price equal to par. Net of initial
purchasers' fees and various other costs and expenses, proceeds from the offering were approximately $835.0 million.
We used the net proceeds from the offering, together with the proceeds from our Credit Facility (which is described
above), to finance the aggregate cash consideration for the merger with Ameristar, pay transaction fees and expenses,
redeem our 8.625% senior notes due in 2017, and provide working capital and funds for general corporate purposes.
The 6.375% Notes bear interest at a rate of 6.375% per year, payable semi-annually in arrears in cash on February 1st
and August 1st of each year. The 6.375% Notes mature on August 1, 2021.

Ameristar originally issued $1.04 billion in aggregate principal amount of 7.50% Notes in 2011 and the Company
assumed the 7.50% Notes in August 2013. The 7.50% Notes bear interest at a rate of 7.50% per year, payable
semi-annually in arrears in cash on April 15th and October 15th of each year. The 7.50% Notes mature on April 15,
2021.

The 6.375% Notes and 7.50% Notes and the guarantees of the 6.375% Notes and 7.50% Notes are senior unsecured
obligations of Pinnacle and the Guarantor subsidiaries (the “Note Guarantors”), respectively, and rank equally with or
senior to, in right of payment, all existing or future unsecured indebtedness of Pinnacle and each Note Guarantor,
respectively, but will be effectively subordinated in right of payment to the Credit Facility and any future secured
indebtedness, to the extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness.

7.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2022 and 8.75% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2020

In March 2012, we issued $325.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 7.75% Notes at a price equal to par. Net of
initial purchasers’ fees and various costs and expenses, proceeds from the offering were approximately $318.3 million.
The 7.75% Notes bear interest at a rate of 7.75% per year, payable on April 1st and October 1st of each year. The
7.75% Notes mature on April 1, 2022.

We issued $350.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 8.75% Notes at a price equal to par in May 2010. Net of
the initial purchasers' fees and various costs and expenses, proceeds from the offering were approximately $341.5
million. The 8.75% Notes bear interest at a rate of 8.75% per year, payable on May 15th and November 15th of each
year. The 8.75% Notes mature on May 15, 2020.

The 7.75% Notes and 8.75% Notes are unsecured senior subordinated obligations and rank subordinate in right of
payment to all of our and our subsidiary guarantors' existing and future indebtedness, except indebtedness that
expressly provides that it ranks equal or subordinate in right of payment to the 7.75% Notes and 8.75% Notes. The
7.75% Notes and 8.75% Notes are guaranteed on a senior subordinated basis by certain of our current and future
domestic restricted subsidiaries. The 7.75% Notes and 8.75% Notes are subordinated to our 6.375% Notes, 7.50%
Notes, and our Credit Facility.

The 6.375% Notes and 7.50% Notes are senior unsecured obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of
our existing and future senior debt, including debt under our Credit Facility. The 6.375% Notes and 7.50% Notes are,
however, effectively subordinated to our Credit Facility, which is secured by a first priority lien, as well as any other
secured debt which may be issued in the future. The 6.375% Notes and 7.50% Notes are guaranteed on a senior basis
by certain of our current and future domestic restricted subsidiaries. The 6.375% Notes and 7.50% Notes rank senior
to our 7.75% Notes and 8.75% Notes.
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Under the indenture governing the 6.375% Notes, among other debt baskets, we are permitted to incur the greater of
$3.0 billion or 3.5x Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the indenture) in senior indebtedness and secured
indebtedness. Under the indenture governing the 7.50% Notes, among other baskets, we are permitted to incur the
greater of $1.8 billion or 3.5x Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the indenture) in senior indebtedness and secured
indebtedness. Under the indentures governing the 7.75% Notes and 8.75% Notes, we are permitted to incur the greater
of $1.5 billion or 2.5x Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the indentures) in senior indebtedness. Under these senior
secured indebtedness baskets, we are permitted in certain circumstances to incur senior unsecured indebtedness. In
addition, the indentures include other debt incurrence baskets, including a permitted refinancing basket and a general
debt basket, the most restrictive of which permits the greater of $100 million or 5% of Consolidated Net Tangible
Assets (as defined in the 7.50% indenture).

As part of the consent solicitation in connection with the 7.50% Notes, we agreed to certain amendments to the
indenture governing the 7.50% Notes that have the effect of reducing our capacity to make payments on subordinated
obligations, make

41

Edgar Filing: PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT INC. - Form 10-Q

65



Table of Contents

dividends or distributions and repurchase stock, make investments and make other restricted payments from and after
the closing of the Ameristar transaction. In particular, the amendments reduce the restricted payment capacity based
on Consolidated Net Income (as defined in the indenture) to zero effective immediately after the effective time of the
Ameristar transaction and the general restricted payment basket to $75 million from $150 million under the indenture
governing the 7.50% Notes. We also obtained the consent from holders of the 7.50% Notes to amend the indenture to
provide that to the extent that the net proceeds of the sale of the Ameristar Lake Charles development and Lumiére
Place Casino and Hotels are used to repay indebtedness under our Credit Facility, such repayment will reduce
dollar-for-dollar the $1.8 billion threshold amount only but not the 3.5x Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the
indenture) threshold amount, in determining the amount of indebtedness permitted to be incurred under our Credit
Facility pursuant to the indenture governing the 7.50% Notes.

The 7.50% Notes, 8.75% Notes, 6.375% Notes, and 7.75% Notes become callable at a premium over their face
amount on April 15, 2015, May 15, 2015, August 1, 2016, and April 1, 2017, respectively. Such premiums decline
periodically as the notes progress towards their respective maturities. All of our notes are redeemable prior to their
first call dates at a price that reflects a yield to the first call that is equivalent to the applicable Treasury bond yield
plus 0.5 percentage points.

As of June 30, 2015, we were in compliance with the financial covenant ratios under the Credit Facility and indentures
governing the Company's 7.50% Notes, 8.75% Notes, 6.375% Notes, and 7.75% Notes and compliance with these
financial covenant ratios does not have a material impact on our financial flexibility, including our ability to incur new
indebtedness based on our operating plans.

Financing in Connection with GLPI Transaction

In connection with the transactions contemplated by the definitive agreement with GLPI, including the Merger and
Spin-Off, GLPI will refinance approximately $2.7 billion (subject to certain adjustments) of principal amount of
Pinnacle debt, with the remaining outstanding debt to be refinanced by OpCo, at closing. We have entered into a
commitment letter, dated July 20, 2015, with certain lenders to provide the debt financing required by OpCo. In
connection with the commitment letter, the lenders have agreed to provide us with financing in an aggregate principal
amount of $1.1 billion, comprised of a (i) $900 million senior secured term loan bridge facility and (ii) $200 million
senior secured revolving credit facility (collectively, the “Facilities”). The Facilities would mature on the one year
anniversary of the initial borrowings under the Facilities. The interest rates on the Facilities would be based on
customary market LIBOR or base rates plus an applicable margin. The obligations of OpCo and the guarantors under
the Facilities would be secured by substantially all assets of OpCo and the guarantors, subject to certain exceptions.
Funding of the lenders’ commitments is subject to certain customary conditions, including, but not limited to, receipt
of financial information, delivery of customary documentation relating to OpCo and its subsidiaries and
consummation of the Spin-Off. We expect to obtain permanent financing for the transaction prior to the closing date,
which would replace the Facilities described above.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
There were no material changes during the three months ended June 30, 2015 to our contractual obligations and
commitments as disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.
On July 20, 2015, we entered into the Agreement and Plan of Merger with Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc.
(“GLPI”) and Gold Merger Sub, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of GLPI (the “Merger Agreement”). Pursuant to the
Merger Agreement, GLPI will acquire substantially all of our real estate assets in an all-stock transaction. In
connection with the merger with GLPI, we entered into a commitment letter with certain lenders whereby the lenders
agreed to provide financing in an aggregate principal amount of $1.1 billion, comprised of a (i) $900 million senior
secured term loan bridge facility and (ii) $200 million senior secured revolving credit facility. For more information,
see Note 11, “Subsequent Event,” to our unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
A description of our critical accounting estimates can be found in Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2014. For a more extensive discussion of our accounting policies, see Note 1, “Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies,” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014. There were no newly identified critical accounting policies and estimates
in the second quarter of 2015, nor were there any material changes to the critical accounting policies and estimates
discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”) provides certain “safe harbor” provisions for
forward-looking statements. Except for the historical information contained herein, the matters addressed in this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, as well as in other reports filed with or furnished to the SEC or statements made by
us, may constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. From time to time, we may provide
oral or written forward-looking statements in our other periodic reports on Form 10-Q, Form 8-K, press releases and
other materials released to the public. All forward-looking statements made in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
and any documents we incorporate by reference are made pursuant to the Act. Words such as, but not limited to,
“believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “intends,” “plans,” “could,” “may,” “will,” “should,” and similar expressions are intended
to identify forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements, which may include, without limitation,
statements regarding the transaction between the Company and Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. (“GLPI”) whereby
the Company would sell its real estate assets to GLPI and spin-off the Company’s operations into a new public
company, the consummation of the transaction and the timing thereof, the ability of the Company to complete the
contemplated financing transactions and reorganizations in connection with the transaction, the ability of the
Company and GLPI to receive stockholder approval for the transaction, the ability of the Company to obtain required
regulatory approvals, and the stock price of the Company and GLPI following the consummation of a transaction with
GLPI, expected results of operations and future operating performance and future growth, adequacy of resources to
fund development and expansion projects, liquidity, financing options, including the state of the capital markets and
our ability to access the capital markets, the state of the credit markets and economy, cash needs, cash reserves,
operating and capital expenses, expense reductions, the sufficiency of insurance coverage, anticipated marketing costs
at various projects, the future outlook of Pinnacle and the gaming industry and pending regulatory and legal matters,
the ability of the Company to continue to meet its financial and other covenants governing its indebtedness, the
Company's anticipated future capital expenditures, ability to implement strategies to improve revenues and operating
margins at the Company’s properties, reduce costs and debt, the Company's ability to successfully implement
marketing programs to increase revenue at the Company's properties, and the Company's ability to improve operations
and performance at Belterra Park and Boomtown New Orleans, are all subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated by us. This can occur as a result of inaccurate
assumptions or as a consequence of known or unknown risks and uncertainties. For more information on the potential
factors that could affect our operating results and financial condition in addition to the risk factors described above,
review our other filings (other than any portion of such filings that are furnished under applicable SEC Rules rather
than filed) with the SEC, including this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, our Annual Report on Form 10-K and the
risk factors described therein. Factors that may cause our actual performance to differ materially from that
contemplated by such forward-looking statements include, among others:

•The pending Merger with GLPI may not be completed and the transaction may have adverse effects on our business;

•Failure to complete the Merger with GLPI could negatively impact the stock price and the future business andfinancial results of the Company;

• Our business is particularly sensitive to reductions in consumers' discretionary spending as a result of
downturns in the economy or other changes we cannot accurately predict;

•
The gaming industry is very competitive and increased competition, including through legislative legalization or
expansion of gaming by states in or near where we own properties or through Native American gaming facilities and
Internet gaming, could adversely affect our financial results;

•
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Our gaming operations rely heavily on technology services provided by third parties. In the event that there is an
interruption of these services to us, it may have an adverse effect on our operations and financial condition;

•
Our business may be harmed from cyber security risk and we may be subject to legal claims if there is loss, disclosure
or misappropriation of or access to our guests' or our business partners' or our own information or other breaches of
our information security;

•We face risks associated with growth and acquisitions;

•
We derived 31.6% and 29.7% of our revenues in 2014 from our casinos located in Louisiana and Missouri,
respectively, and are especially subject to certain risks, including economic and competitive risks, associated with the
conditions in those areas and in the states from which we draw patrons;
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•
Our present indebtedness and projected future borrowings could adversely affect our financial health; future cash
flows may not be sufficient to meet our obligations, and we may have difficulty obtaining additional financing; and
we may experience adverse effects of interest rate fluctuations;

•Our indebtedness imposes restrictive covenants on us;

•To service our indebtedness, we will require a significant amount of cash. Our ability to generate cash depends onmany factors beyond our control;

• Our ability to obtain additional financing on commercially reasonable terms may be
limited;

•
In the event that we undertake future development plans for capital-intensive projects, we may be required to borrow
significant amounts under our amended and restated credit facility and, depending on which projects are pursued to
completion, may cause us to incur substantial additional indebtedness;

•We may experience an impairment of our goodwill, other intangible assets, or long-lived assets, which could
adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations;

•Insufficient or lower-than-expected results generated from our new developments and acquired properties maynegatively affect our operating results and financial condition;

•Rising operating costs at our gaming properties could have a negative impact on our business;

•The global recession has affected our business and financial condition, and economic conditions may continue toaffect us in ways that we currently cannot accurately predict;

•
We are engaged from time to time in one or more construction and development projects, and many factors could
prevent us from completing them as planned, including the escalation of construction costs beyond increments
anticipated in our construction budgets;

•Our industry is highly regulated, which makes us dependent on obtaining and maintaining gaming licenses andsubjects us to potentially significant fines and penalties;

•Potential changes in the regulatory environment could harm our business;

•Our business may be adversely affected by legislation prohibiting tobacco smoking;

•
Adverse weather conditions, road construction, gasoline shortages and other factors affecting our facilities and the
areas in which we operate could make it more difficult for potential customers to travel to our properties and deter
customers from visiting our properties;

•Our results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected by the occurrence of naturaldisasters, such as hurricanes, or other catastrophic events, including war and terrorism;

•The concentration and evolution of the slot machine manufacturing industry or other technological conditions couldimpose additional costs on us;

•
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We operate in a highly taxed industry and it may be subject to higher taxes in the future. If the jurisdictions in which
we operate increase gaming taxes and fees, our operating results could be adversely affected;

•Natural disasters have made it more challenging for us to obtain adequate levels of Weather Catastrophe
Occurrence/Named Windstorm, Flood and Earthquake insurance coverage for our properties;

•We may incur property and other losses that are not adequately covered by insurance, which may harm our results of
operations;

•Work stoppages, organizing drives and other labor problems could negatively impact our future profits;

•We face environmental and archaeological regulation of our real estate;
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•We are subject to litigation, which, if adversely determined, could cause us to incur substantial losses;

•We are subject to certain federal, state and other regulations;

•Climate change, climate change regulations and greenhouse effects may adversely impact our operations and markets;

•We face business and regulatory risks associated with our investment in Asian Coast Development (Canada), Ltd.;

•
Our operations are largely dependent on the skill and experience of our management and key personnel. The
loss of management and other key personnel could significantly harm our business, and we may not be able to
effectively replace members of management who have left the company;

•Some of our casinos are located on leased property. If we default on one or more leases, the applicable lessors couldterminate the affected leases and we could lose possession of the affected casino;

•We are subject to extensive governmental regulations that impose restrictions on the ownership and transfer of our
securities; and

•The market price for our common stock may be volatile, and you may not be able to sell our stock at a favorable priceor at all.

In addition, these forward-looking statements could be affected by general domestic and international economic and
political conditions, uncertainty as to the future direction of the economy and vulnerability of the economy to
domestic or international incidents, as well as market conditions in our industry.

For a further list and description of various risks, relevant factors and uncertainties that could cause future results or
events to differ materially from those expressed or implied in our forward-looking statements, please see the “Risk
Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” sections
contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, as well as the “Risk Factors” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” sections contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2014 and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31,
2015 and review our other filings (other than any portion of such filings that are furnished under applicable SEC rules
rather than filed) with the SEC. All forward-looking statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are
made only as of the date of this Form 10-Q. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
At times, we are exposed to market risk from adverse changes in interest rates with respect to the short-term floating
interest rate on borrowings under our Credit Facility. As of June 30, 2015, we had approximately $12.0 million
committed under various letters of credit under our Credit Facility and approximately $475.1 million in revolver and
base rate borrowings under our Credit Facility. Any borrowings outstanding under our revolving credit facility accrue
interest at LIBOR plus a margin determined by our consolidated total leverage ratio, which margin was 2.75% as of
June 30, 2015. As of June 30, 2015, we had approximately $721.7 million outstanding under these term loans. The
term loans bear interest at LIBOR plus 2.75% and carry a 1.0% LIBOR floor. The revolving credit facility bears
interest, at our option, at either LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 1.75% to 2.75% or at a base rate plus a margin
ranging from 0.75% to 1.75%, in either case, based on our consolidated total leverage ratio.
As of June 30, 2015, for every 10 basis points decrease in LIBOR, our annual interest expense would decrease by
approximately $0.5 million, assuming constant debt levels. If LIBOR were to increase by one percentage point, our
annual interest expense would increase by approximately $6.1 million, assuming constant debt levels.
The table below provides the principal cash flows and related weighted average interest rates by contractual maturity
dates for our debt obligations as of June 30, 2015. As of June 30, 2015, we did not hold any material investments in
market-risk-sensitive instruments of the type described in Item 305 of Regulation S-K.
Liabilities 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total Fair Value

(in thousands)
Credit
Facility $— $— $— $475,118 $— $— $475,118 $470,890

Interest Rate
(a) 2.94 % 2.94 % 2.94 % 2.94 % 2.94 % 2.94 % 2.94 %

Term B-2
Loans $5,500 $11,000 $11,000 $11,000 $11,000 $672,249 $721,749 $720,883

Interest Rate 3.75 % 3.75 % 3.75 % 3.75 % 3.75 % 3.75 % 3.75 %
6.375%
Notes $— $— $— $— $— $850,000 $850,000 $905,250

Interest Rate 6.375 % 6.375 % 6.375 % 6.375 % 6.375 % 6.375 % 6.375 %
7.50% Notes $— $— $— $— $— $1,040,000 $1,040,000 $1,110,200
Fixed Rate 7.50 % 7.50 % 7.50 % 7.50 % 7.50 % 7.50 % 7.50 %
7.75% Notes $— $— $— $— $— $325,000 $325,000 $357,500
Fixed Rate 7.75 % 7.75 % 7.75 % 7.75 % 7.75 % 7.75 % 7.75 %
8.75% Notes $— $— $— $— $— $350,000 $350,000 $366,205
Fixed Rate 8.75 % 8.75 % 8.75 % 8.75 % 8.75 % 8.75 % 8.75 %
Other $3 $7 $8 $8 $9 $51 $86 $86
Fixed rate 10.00 % 10.00 % 10.00 % 10.00 % 10.00 % 10.00 % 10.00 %

(a) The interest rate on the Credit Facility is as of June 30, 2015. Beginning in the third quarter 2015, as a result of a
decrease in our consolidated total leverage ratio as of the end of the second quarter 2015, the margin on our
borrowings under the revolving credit facility will be reduced to 2.50% from 2.75%.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO”) and the Chief Financial
Officer (the “CFO”), evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) as of June 30, 2015.
Based on this evaluation, the Company’s management, including the CEO and the CFO, concluded that, as of June 30,
2015, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective, in that they provide a reasonable level of
assurance that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports filed or submitted by it under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules
and forms. The Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including the CEO and the CFO, as appropriate, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, there can be no assurance that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures will
detect or uncover all failures of persons within the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries to disclose material
information otherwise required to be set forth in the Company’s periodic reports. There are inherent limitations to the
effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of human error and the
circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and
procedures can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance of achieving their control objectives.

No change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)
under the Exchange Act) occurred during the quarter ended June 30, 2015 that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are a party to a number of other pending legal proceedings. Management does not expect that the outcome of such
proceedings, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material effect on our financial position, cash flows or
results of operations.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The following are new risk factors that should be read in conjunction with the risk factors set forth under Part I, Item
1A “Risk Factors” in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 and Part II,
Item 1A “Risk Factors” in the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31,
2015.

The pending Merger with Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. (“GLPI”) may not be completed and the transaction may
have adverse effects on our business.

The pending Merger pursuant to which GLPI will acquire substantially all of the Company’s real estate may not be
completed as contemplated for a variety of reasons, including: (1) conditions to the closing of the transaction may not
be satisfied (as more fully discussed below); (2) the occurrence of an event, change or other circumstance that could
give rise to the termination of the Merger Agreement (as more fully discussed below); and (3) other risks to the
consummation of the Merger, including the risk that the Merger will not be consummated within the expected time
period or at all.

Completion of the Merger is subject to certain conditions, many of which are beyond our control, including, among
others: (1) receipt of the approval of stockholders of both GLPI and the Company as required for the transaction; (2)
the absence of any injunction, restraining order or other orders or laws prohibiting the consummation of the Merger;
(3) the receipt of all required regulatory approvals in a timely manner (including receipt of necessary approvals from
gaming regulatory authorities); (4) the registration of the shares of GLPI to be issued to stockholders of the Company;
(5) the listing of the shares of GLPI on the NASDAQ; (6) the registration of the shares of OpCo to be distributed to
stockholders of the Company in connection with the Spin-Off, (7) the completion of the Spin-Off; and (8) the absence
of action pending before, or threatened in writing by, the U.S. Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice or the
Federal Trade Commission wherein an unfavorable judgment would prevent the Merger or related transactions or
have certain other adverse effects. The obligation of each party to consummate the Merger is also conditioned upon
the accuracy of the other party’s representations and warranties, the absence of a material adverse effect involving the
other party, and the other party having performed in all material respects its obligations under the Merger Agreement.

The Merger Agreement contains certain termination rights for both GLPI and Pinnacle, including if (1) the Merger is
not consummated by March 31, 2016, which may be extended by GLPI until June 30, 2016 if the only outstanding
closing conditions on March 31, 2016 relate to regulatory approvals, (2) there is an injunction prohibiting the
consummation of the Merger, (3) the approval of GLPI’s shareholders or Pinnacle’s stockholders is not obtained, or
(4) there has been a breach by the other party that is not cured such that the applicable closing conditions are not
satisfied. 

In addition, GLPI may terminate the Merger Agreement prior to the adoption of the Merger Agreement by Pinnacle’s
stockholders in the event Pinnacle’s Board of Directors makes an adverse recommendation change, as more fully
described in the Merger Agreement. If the Merger Agreement is terminated by GLPI in the circumstances described in
the preceding sentence or in certain other circumstances, then Pinnacle will be obligated to pay a termination fee of
$60 million to GLPI. If the Merger Agreement is terminated by either party because the stockholders of Pinnacle fail
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to adopt the Merger Agreement or the shareholders of GLPI fail to approve the share issuance for the transaction, the
party who failed to obtain its requisite stockholder vote will be required to pay $20.0 million to the other party for the
expenses of such other party. The Merger Agreement also provides that GLPI will be required to pay Pinnacle a
reverse termination fee equal to $150.0 million if the Merger Agreement is terminated by either GLPI or Pinnacle
because (A) of any injunction, order, decree or ruling relating to gaming, antitrust or related laws or any related
consents or approvals or (B) the end date of the Merger has passed and certain conditions related to regulatory and
gaming approvals have not been satisfied, provided, that GLPI shall not be required to pay such a fee if the primary
cause of such termination was an adverse suitability finding under applicable gaming laws with respect to the business
of OpCo.  

 Furthermore, there are a number of risks and uncertainties to our business related to the pending Merger, including:
(1) the transactions may involve unexpected costs, liabilities or delays, including those arising from legal proceedings
related to the transaction; (2) our business, including our relationships with our guests, employees and suppliers, may
suffer as a result of uncertainty surrounding the transactions; (3) that we may be adversely affected by other economic,
business or competitive
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factors during the time the Merger is pending; (4) the transactions, including provisions in the Merger Agreement that
place restrictions on the conduct of our business prior to the completion of the Merger, may disrupt our current plans
and operations, including plans for future growth; and (5) potential difficulties in recruiting and retaining employees
as a result of the transactions. If the Merger is completed, the Company’s stockholders will cease to have any equity
interest in the Company and will have equity interests in GLPI and OpCo. OpCo will initially pay GLPI $377 million
in rent in the first year after the Merger, which will represent a substantial portion of the cash flows from operations of
OpCo. 

Further, the consideration that our shareholders will receive will be 0.85 share of GLPI common stock for every
outstanding share of Pinnacle common stock and such exchange ratio will not vary based on the market price of GLPI
common stock before the effective time of the Merger.  If the market price of GLPI common stock declines prior to
the closing of the Merger, the per share consideration our shareholders will receive could reflect a lower value than
that upon which the Merger was valued at the time we entered into the Merger Agreement.

Failure to complete the Merger with GLPI could negatively impact the stock price and the future business and
financial results of the Company. 

If the Merger is not completed, the ongoing business of the Company may be adversely affected and the Company
will be subject to several risks, including the following:

•having to pay certain costs relating to the proposed Merger and the Spin-Off, such as legal, accounting, financialadvisor, filing, printing and mailing fees;

•

focusing the Company’s management on the Merger, which could lead to the disruption of the Company’s ongoing
business or inconsistencies in its services, standards, controls, procedures and policies, any of which could adversely
affect the ability of the Company to maintain relationships with customers, regulators, vendors and employees, or
could otherwise adversely affect the business and financial results of the Company, without realizing any of the
benefits of having the Merger completed; and

•
foregoing other opportunities in favor of the Merger instead of on pursuing such other opportunities that could be
beneficial to the Company, including the Company pursuing its own REIT Spin-Off, without realizing any of the
benefits of having the Merger completed.

In addition to the above risks, the Company may be required, under certain circumstances, to pay to GLPI a
termination fee of $60 million if the Merger Agreement is terminated under certain circumstances, including because
the Company's Board of Directors has made an adverse recommendation change in connection with the special
meeting of stockholders. Further, the Company may have to pay $20 million to GLPI in the event the Company fails
to obtain stockholder approval for the Merger.

If the Merger is not completed, the Company cannot assure its stockholders that these risks will not materialize and
will not materially affect its business, financial results, and stock price.
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Item 6. Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit

2.1

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 20, 2015, by and among Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc.,
Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Gold Merger Sub, LLC is hereby incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2015. (SEC File No.
001-13641).

3.1
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., as amended, is hereby incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 9, 2005. (SEC File
No. 001-13641).

3.2
Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. is
hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
May 21, 2015. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

3.3
Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock is hereby incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on November 7, 2014.
(SEC File No. 001-13641).

3.4
Restated Bylaws of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., as of May 24, 2011, are hereby incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 26, 2011. (SEC File No.
001-13641).

4.1

Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of March 13, 2015, between Pinnacle Entertainment,
Inc. and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, as Rights Agent, is hereby incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A/A filed on March 19, 2015.
(SEC File No. 001-13641).

4.2

Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of July 20, 2015, between
Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC is hereby incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2015. (SEC File
No. 001-13641).

10.1†
Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. 2015 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan is hereby incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 21, 2015. (SEC File
No. 001-13641).

10.2†
Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated, is hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 21,
2015. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

10.3
Tax Matters Agreement, dated July 20, 2015, by and between Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and
Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2015. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

10.4 Commitment Letter, dated as of July 20, 2015, among Pinnacle Entertainment, JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., J.P. Morgan Securities, LLC, Bank of America, N.A., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated, Goldman Sachs Bank USA, Fifth Third Bank, U.S. Bank National Association, Credit
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Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank, Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, Deutsche Bank AG
Cayman Islands Branch, Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, National Association and
Wells Fargo Securities, LLC is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2015. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

10.5
Voting Agreement, dated as of July 20, 2015, by and among Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., Peter M. Carlino
and the Carlino Family Trust is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2015. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

10.6

Voting Agreement, dated as of July 20, 2015, by and among Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., Fortress
Investment Fund V (GLPI SisterCo B) LP, Fortress Investment Fund V (GLPI SisterCo C) LP, Fortress
Investment Fund V (GLPI SisterCo F) LP, Fortress Investment Fund V (Coinvestment GLPI Sister Co B)
LP, Fortress Investment Fund V (Coinvestment GLPI SisterCo C) LP, Fortress Investment Fund V
(Coinvestment GLPI SisterCo F) LP, Fortress Investment Fund V (GLPI SisterCo A) LP, Fortress
Investment Fund V (GLPI SisterCo D) LP, Fortress Investment Fund V (GLPI SisterCo E) LP, Fortress
Investment Fund V (Coinvestment GLPI SisterCo A) LP and Fortress Investment Fund V (Coinvestment
GLPI SisterCo D) LP is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2015. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

11* Statement re: Computation of Per Share Earnings.
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Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit

31.1* Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

31.2* Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

32** Section 1350 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

101*

Financial statements from Pinnacle's Entertainment, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended June 30, 2015, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language):
(i)
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations;
(ii)
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss);
(iii)
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets;
(iv)
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity;
(v)
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows; and
(vi)
Notes to unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

 ________________
* Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith.
† Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURE
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

PINNACLE ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: August 10, 2015 By:  /s/ Carlos A. Ruisanchez  
Carlos A. Ruisanchez
President and Chief Financial Officer
(Authorized Officer, Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer) 
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit

2.1

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 20, 2015, by and among Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc.,
Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Gold Merger Sub, LLC is hereby incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2015. (SEC File No.
001-13641).

3.1
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., as amended, is hereby incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 9, 2005. (SEC File
No. 001-13641).

3.2
Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. is
hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
May 21, 2015. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

3.3
Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock is hereby incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on November 7, 2014.
(SEC File No. 001-13641).

3.4
Restated Bylaws of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., as of May 24, 2011, are hereby incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 26, 2011. (SEC File No.
001-13641).

4.1

Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of March 13, 2015, between Pinnacle Entertainment,
Inc. and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, as Rights Agent, is hereby incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A/A filed on March 19, 2015.
(SEC File No. 001-13641).

4.2

Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of July 20, 2015, between
Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC is hereby incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2015. (SEC File
No. 001-13641).

10.1†
Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. 2015 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan is hereby incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 21, 2015. (SEC File
No. 001-13641).

10.2†
Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated, is hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 21,
2015. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

10.3
Tax Matters Agreement, dated July 20, 2015, by and between Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and
Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2015. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

10.4 Commitment Letter, dated as of July 20, 2015, among Pinnacle Entertainment, JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., J.P. Morgan Securities, LLC, Bank of America, N.A., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated, Goldman Sachs Bank USA, Fifth Third Bank, U.S. Bank National Association, Credit
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Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank, Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, Deutsche Bank AG
Cayman Islands Branch, Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, National Association and
Wells Fargo Securities, LLC is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2015. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

10.5
Voting Agreement, dated as of July 20, 2015, by and among Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., Peter M. Carlino
and the Carlino Family Trust is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2015. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

10.6

Voting Agreement, dated as of July 20, 2015, by and among Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., Fortress
Investment Fund V (GLPI SisterCo B) LP, Fortress Investment Fund V (GLPI SisterCo C) LP, Fortress
Investment Fund V (GLPI SisterCo F) LP, Fortress Investment Fund V (Coinvestment GLPI Sister Co B)
LP, Fortress Investment Fund V (Coinvestment GLPI SisterCo C) LP, Fortress Investment Fund V
(Coinvestment GLPI SisterCo F) LP, Fortress Investment Fund V (GLPI SisterCo A) LP, Fortress
Investment Fund V (GLPI SisterCo D) LP, Fortress Investment Fund V (GLPI SisterCo E) LP, Fortress
Investment Fund V (Coinvestment GLPI SisterCo A) LP and Fortress Investment Fund V (Coinvestment
GLPI SisterCo D) LP is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on July 23, 2015. (SEC File No. 001-13641).

11* Statement re: Computation of Per Share Earnings.
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Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit

31.1* Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

31.2* Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

32** Section 1350 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

101*

Financial statements from Pinnacle's Entertainment, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended June 30, 2015, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language):
(i)
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations;
(ii)
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss);
(iii)
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets;
(iv)
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity;
(v)
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows; and
(vi)
Notes to unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

 ________________
* Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith.
† Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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